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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION
P.O. BOX 1806

CONCORD, NH 03302-1806
603-271-5610 FAX: 888-908-6609

TDD ACCESS: 1-800-735-2964

www.nh.gov/nhdoc

HELEN E. HANKS

COMMISSIONER

JONATHAN K. HANSON

DIRECTOR

May 8,2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sunvuiu
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

NH Department of Corrections (NHDOC) is seeking to enter into a Sole Source contract with the Office
of Public Guardian (VC #166528), 2 Pillsbury Street, Suite 400, Concord, NH 03301 in the amount of
$382,566.80, for the provision of Guardianship Services, effective upon Governor and Executive Council
approval for the period beginning July 1, 2023 through Jime 30, 2026, with the option to renew for one
additional period of up to three years, subject to Governor and Executive Council approval.
100% General funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in account, Medical-Dental: 02-46-46-465010-82340000-101-500729
for Fiscal Yeaifs) 2024,2025, and 2026, upon the continued appropriation of funds in the future operating
budget(s) with the authority to adjust encumbrances between fiscal years within the price limitation through
the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

Office of Public Guardian

Account Description FY2024 FY2025 FY2026 Total

02-46-46-465010-82340000-101-500729 Guardianship Services $124,000.80 $127,366.75 $131,199.25 $382,566.80

Total Contract Amount $382,566.80

EXPLANATION

The NHDOC is seeking to enter into a sole source contract with the Office of Public Guardian (OPG). In
March, 2018 RFP NHDOC 18-04-GFMED resulted with OPG as the only respondent to the solicitation for
guardianship and protective services to the residents in the southern region. OPG is the only source agency
in the Southern tier and has been providing Guardianship Services to the NHDOC since 1997.

Guardianship services are to safeguard the liberty and wellbeing of persons, who because of functional
limitations have suffered, are suffering, or are likely to suffer substantial harm due to an inability to provide
for personal needs, food, clothing, shelter, healthcare, safety, or an inability to manage their property or
fmancial affairs on their own.

Promoting Public Safety with Respect, Professionalism, Dedication and Courage as One Team
HI



Guardianship and protective scr\'iccs under this contract arc to be provided to persons at risk of hami to
person or estate whom the State of New Hampsliirc has responsibility to safeguard pursuant to RSA 21-
H:S.

Respectfully Submitted,

E. Hanks

Commissioner

l'|-oiiibling Public Safely wiih Rcspccl; Professionalism, (Xxlicalion and Courage as One Team
12]



FORM NUMBER P-37 (veraioD 2/23/2023)

Mfltis; Hiis sgreemt and ell of hs ettadmenu sbal) become public upon submission to Oovemor end
ExecttUye CouncQ for approval Any tofonnation that bpnvate, confidential or pn^irietaiy must
be dearly identified to the tgency end agreed to in writing prior Co signing die contract

agreement
The State of New Hampshire and die Contractor hereby mutoalty agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTinCATION.

1.1 State AgetrcyName. ^
'HH Department ofCorrections

12 State Agdrqr Address

PX3. box 1806
Concord. NH 03302

IJ Contractor Name

OfRce of Public Ouardiati

(VC«I66S28)

1.4 Contractor Address

2 Pillsbury Street, Suite 400
Concord, NH 03301

U Contractor Phone

Nnmber

60^224-8041

1.6 Account Unit arrd Class

02-46-46^5010-82340000-

101-500729

1.7 Cdmptetlon Date

June3O,20^
1.8 Price Limhition

n82>66.80

1.9 Contracting Officer for Sttte Agency
Paula L. Matlis

1.10 State Agen^ Telepbooe Number

603-271-5563

I.M ̂.Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Roger P. Jobin, .President

1.13 *S^Agenoy Signature 1.14 Name and Thle of State Agency SigrmtoTy;-

Helen E Hanks, Commissioner
.

, I.IS'Approval by the HJlE)ep8rtment of Atoipidratioaipivis

By.

ion of Peirsonnel

, Director, On:

1.16 ^iproval by the Attorney Oenenl (Form. Substance and Execution)

1.17 Approval by thd'Oovemor and Executive Council ̂ appilciUJe)

(MbC Item number O&C Meetir^ Date
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Z SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. Iht State of Hew

Hampsbiie, ecting thnnigb tbe agency Identified in block 1.1
C*Staie'0> engages contrector identified in block U CContRctor)
to perfonn, and tbe Contractor shall perfonn. the work or sale of
goods, or both, identified and more partlcul^ descrfiied in tbe
attached EXHIBIT 8 whld) b jncoiporated herein by refitrence
C*Ser^ces^

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OP SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of thb Agreement to the
contraiy, and subj^ to tbe approval of tbe Governor and
Executive Coandl of tbe State of New Hampshire, if appficable,
thb Agreement, and all ddlggtioas of tbe parties bereonder, doll
become ef&ctive on the date the Oovemor and Executive Coancil
ai^nove thb Agreement, unless no such approval b required, in
which case (he Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement b signed by the State Agency as shown in block MS
0*Efrectlve Date*0.
3.2 Ifthe Contractor commenoes the Services prior to the Efiecdve
Date, all Services performed fay the Contractor prior to the
Effective Date dallte performed at (he sole rbk of the Cotttmctor,
end in the event that thb Agreement does not become effective, tbe
State dtall have no Cablllty to (be Contractor, mcloding without
limitation, any obUgation to pay tbe Contractor for any costs
incurred or Services performed.
3J Contractor must complete aU Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OP AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provbloa of thb Agreement to the contraiy,
all obligations of the State hereunder, inctttding, without Qmltstion,
the continuance of payments bereunder, are contingent upon the
availabilHy and conuDoed appropriation of funds, fa) DO event shall
the State be liable for any payments hotunder b excess of such
available appropriated fimds. In tbe event of a reduction or
termination of appttqirialed funds by any state or federallegblative
or executive action (hat reduces, e&thmtes or otherwise modifies
the appn^iriatioa or avaOdifliQr offfanding for thb Agreement and
die SMpe for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, fa) whole or in part,
tbe State shaO have the right to withhold ptyro^ untQ such fUnds
become available, if ever, and dtall ha^ dw right m reduce or
terminate the Services under thb Agreement bniDediately upon
giving the ContrEctor notice ofsncfa reduction or (erminatioo. The
State riiall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event fimds
in (hat Accoum ere reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMnTATION/ PAYMENT.

5.1 Tbe couti'flct price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are idemified and more pardcuhrly described in EXHIBIT C
which b incorporated ber^ by reference.
5.2 Notwddistuuling any piovbkm In (hb Agreement to the
contraiy, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event ritall tbe total of ell paymeots authorized, or actually iMde
hereunder, exceed (he Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.'The
payment by tbe State of the contract price shall be tbe only and the
complete rehnbursement to the Contractor for all expenses, of
vriiatever nature Incoired by the Contractor in the performance

hereof, and riian be tbe only and the complete compensation to the
Contractor for the Services.
53 The State reserves the ri^t to ofbet fiom any amounts
ofoerwbe payable to tbe Contractor under thb Agreement those
Itquidated amounts required or permitted by Nil. RSA 80:7
threugb RSA 80:7< or any other provblon of law.
5.4 The State*$ liability under fob Agreement shall he limited to
monetary damages not to exceed the total fees paid. The Contractor
agrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach offob
Agreement by tbe State and hereby waives any right to specific
performance or other equitable remedies against tbe State.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND

RBGULATTONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.
6.1 to connectlcn wifo tbe perfbnnance of foe Services, (be
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
r^uhtions, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation cr duty upon (he
Contractor, fndndfng, but not limited to, dvfl rights equal
emptoyreeot opportunity laws and the Govemo) border on Respect
and awiity fo foe Workplace, Executive order 20264)1. In
addiUan, If thb Agreement b fitted in any part by monies of tbe
United States, tbe Contractor shall com^ with eD federal
mcecutive orders, roles, reguiattons and statutes, end with any rales,
regotadotts and guidelines as tbe State or the United States bsue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply
with all qiplicable inteDectttal property laws.
63 During foe term of thb AgrMment, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or ai^bants for employment
because of age, sex, sexual crtentation, race, color, marital status,
ifoyslcal or mental disablH^, reUgkw creed, nadonal origin,
gender identity, or gender expression, end wQI take affomative
action to prevent such dbcriminstioa, unless exempt by state or
federal law. The Contractor shall ensure any subcontractora
comply with these ncndbcrimlnatlon requirements.
63 No payments or transfers of value by Contractor or Its
representatives in connectioD with fob Agreemern have or foall be
nuuie which have the purpose or effect of public or commercial
bribery, or acc^tance of or acquiescence in extortion, khkbacks,
or other unlawftil or impraper means ofobtaining httshiess.
6A. The Contractor agrees to permit foe State or United States
access to ai^ of the Contractorb botks, records and accounts for
tbe purpose of ascertaining compliance wifo thb Agreement and
an rales, regulations and orders pertaining to the covenants, terms
end con^ons of thb Agreement

7. PERSONNEL.
7.1 The Contractor ifoflll et ib own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perfimn the Services. The Contractor warrants (hat all
personnd engaged fa) foe Services sbaU be qualified to perform the
Ser^ces, and shall be property licensed and ofoerwbe authorized
to do so under aQ applicable laws.
73 The Contractiag Officer specified in block 1.9, or any
successor, shall be tbe State's p^t of contact pertaining to fob
Agreement

P^e2of4
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of (be following nets or omissioos of the
Contractor shall constUnte an event of defiiult hereunder Caveat

ofDeftutH'
8.1.1 ftihtre to perform 8ie Services satis&ctorfly or on scfaedole;
8.1.2 fhUure to submit any re^ retjuired bereonden and/or
8.U fiuture to perform any other covenant, term or conditioa of
this Agreement
8.2 Upon the occuireace of any Event of Defoilt, die Slate may
take any one, or more, or an, of the fcdlowiog actions:
8.2.1 ̂ ve the Contractor a written notice spectfytng the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in dm absence of a
greater or less^ specification of time, thirty (30) calendar days
from the date of the notke; and ifthe Event ofDe&ult is not dmt^
cured, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) calendar days
after ghring the Contractor notice oftermination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and sospeodtng all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portiooofthe contract price which
would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during tfte period from
the date of such notice untfi such dme as the State det^ines that
the Contractor has cored dte Event of De&ult shall never be paid
to the Contractor,
8.2J give the Contractor a written notice q^edfying dte Event of
Default and set offagainst any odter obligations the State may owe
to the Contractor any damages tha Smte suffers by reason of any
Event of Deffault; and/or
8.2.4 ̂ ve the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, tenninate the Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies at law or m equify, or both.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, fa whole or in
part, by Airty (30) cafanrtar days wrftten notice to the Contractor
that the State b exerdrii^ its (g)tian to terminate die Agreement
9.2 In the event ofan early termination ofthb Agreement for any
reason other than the completion of the Services, the Contractor
rfiall, at the StBte*s discretion, ddiver to tire Contractfag Officer,
not later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the date of
teniunation, a report fTermlnatioQ Repoif) describing fa detail
all Services perfiumed, and the contract price earned, to and
' tadudii^ tiie date of teiminatioa. In additfan, at tiie Staters

discretimt, the Contractor diall, wftltin fifteen (1^ calendar days
of notice of early termfaatbn, develop and submit to the State a
transition plan for Services un^ the Agreement.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIPyDlSCLOSURE.

10.1 As used to thb Agreernem, the word **Propetfy" shall mean
all data, information and things developed or obtained during the
performance o^ or acqubed or developed by reason oH thb
Agreement, indading, but not limited to, all stupes, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorid reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memonmda, prqKrs, and documents, all whether finltited or
unfinished.

102 All data and any Property which has been received from the
State, or purchased vrith funds provided for that purpose under thb
Agrment, shall be the profterfy ofthe State, and shall be returned
to the State npm demand or tqion termination of tius Agreernem
for any reason.
102 Disclosure of data, information and other records rftall be
governed by Nii RSA cbapter-91-A and/or other applicable law.
[Nsdosure requires prior written ̂ ^voval ofthe Sts^

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE, b the

performance ofthb Agreement tite Contractor b fa all lespects an
todependeot contractor, and b neither an agent nor an employee of
theState. Neither the Contractor norany of !b officers, employees,
agenb or members shall have autborify to bind the St^ or receive
any benefits, workers* ixmipensation or other emohimenb
provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 Contractbr shall provide the State written notice at least fifteen
(15) caleodar days before any proposed assignment, detegation, or
oihtf transfor of ar^ Interest fa thb Agreement No s^
assignmeot delegation, or other transfer shall be effective without
the written consent of̂  State.
122 For purposes of pangr^ 12, a Change of Control shall
constitute asslgnfflent *Change of Contror means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions fa
vrfiicfa a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes die direct
or indirect owner of fiffy percent (50%) or more of the voting
shares or similar equity fatmsta, or combined voting power oftire
Contractor, or (b) foe sale ofen or substBDtiany all ofthe assets of
the Contractor.
122 None ofthe Services diaU be subcontracted by the Contractor
without prior written notice and consent oftite Stf^
124 The State b entitled to copies of an sobcontracb and
assignment agreements and shaU not be bound by any provisions
contained In a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which It
bnqtaparfy.

13. INDEMNinCATlON. The Contractor shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless the State, ib officers, and employees
fnnn and against all actions, claims, damages, demands,
jwi^fnts, fines, Dabflities, losses, and other expenses, toclodlng,
without Umltatioh, reasonable attorneys* fees, arbfag out of or
itlatfag to thb Agntemeitt directly or fadirectfyarisfag from death,
personal iq{uiy, property danoge, tottllectual property
fafringemeat, or other daims asserted a^fast the State, its officers,
or employees caused by the acts or omissions of negltgcncc,
reckless or willful misconduct, or fraud by the Contractor, its
enq>loyees, agents, or subcontrsotors. The S^ tiiall not be liable
for any cosb incuired by tiie Contractor arbfag tinder tiib
paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, ndhlng herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the State's
sovereign immunity, whkb Immunity b hereby reserved to the
State. Thb covenant fa paragraph 13 shall survive the termtoation
ofthh AgreemcnL
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Contractor Initiab

Dale_5ZS/2 ̂



14. INSURANCE.

14.1 He Contrector sfaaO, et Hs sole expense, obtain and
Gontinocttsly midnt^ In force, end diaU lequiie any subcontractor
or assignee to obtain and roantaln in force, the foDowtng
Insurance:

14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims of
bodily ir\)ary, death or property damage, in amounts of not less then
$1,000,C00 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate or excess;
and
14.12 q>edal cause of loss coverage form covering all Property
subject to snbpaiagmpb 102 herein. In an amount not less dian
80H of the whole replacement value ofdte Property.
142 The policies described in sofapar^ra|di 14.1 baalndiallbeon
polity fonns and endorsements approved for use in the State of
New Hampdrfae by die N.H. Department of Insurance and Issued
by insurers fioensed to the State ofNew Hampshire.
142 The Contractor dull hmnsh to the Contracttog Officer
idendfied to block 1.9, or any successor, a ceitific8te(s) of
tesoiance for an tosuranoe required under this Agreement Attbe
request of the Contracttog Oflfaer, or any successor, the Contractor
shaO provide Cieitifitate(s) of tosotance for aH renewal(s) of
tosurance required under this Agreement The ceitiftcate(s) of
insurance ami any renewals dtereof duU be attached aid are
inooiporated hereto by reference.'

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.

IS.l By sigmng this agreement, du Contractor agrees, certifies and
warrants diat die Contractor is to compliance with or exempt ftom,
the requirements of Nil. RSA cluqrter 28i-A ("Worken'
Compaaatlon").
152 To the extent the Contractor bsubj^ to die requirements of
Nil. RSA chqiter 28i-A, Contractor di^ matotain, and require
any subcontractor or assi^iee to secure and matotato, ptyment of
Workers* Compensatton to cormectkm with Bctfvitl.es which die
person pnqwses to undertake pursuant to this Agreement The
Coatiactoi dull fiunldi die Contracttog Officer identified to blodc
12, or aity successor, proof of Workers* Compensation to the
manner described to Nit RSA chapter 281 ̂A end any applicable
ieoewal(8) thereof which shall be attadied end are tocorpoiated
hereto by reference. The State shaO not be responsible for payment
ofany Workers* Compensation premiums or for aity other claim or
benefit for Contractor, or any subcontractor or eototoyee of
Contractor, which mi^ arise under applicable State of New
Hampshire Workers* Compensation laws to connection with die
performance of the Services under this Agreement

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. A State's totture to enforce its rights
with respect to at^ dngle or condmitog breach of this Agreement
dull not act as a waiver of die ri^ of the State to later enforce any
such li^ts or to enforce any other or any subsequent breadt

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall
be deemed to have been duly deUvoed or given at the time of
maiUngtty certified man, postage prepaid, In a United States Post
Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given to blocks 12
and 1.4, hereto.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or
discharged onfy by an tostnonent in writiDg signed by die parties
hereto and only after approval of such amendment, waiver or
discharge by the Governor and Executive Coundl of the State of
New Hamprtiire unless no such approval Is required under the
circumstances pursuant to State tew, rale or policy.

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM.
19.1 This Agreement rtiall be governed, interpreted and construed
to eccordance with the tews of(be State ofNew Hamprtiire excqit
where the Federal suprematy clause requires otherwise. The
wording used to (his Agreement b the wording chosen by the
parties to express didr mutual intent, and no rale of construction
shall be applied against or in fovor ofany party.
192 Any actioas arising out of thb Agreement, toctodtog the
bttsch or alleged breach (hereof; may not be aibmltted to btodtog
arbitration, but must. Instead, be brou^ and matotatoed to the
Meinmadc County Superior Court ofNew Hampriilie which duA
have exctoshre Jurisdiction diereot

20. CONFUdlNG TERMS. In the event of a conflict between
die terms of thb P>37 form (as modified to EXHtBIT A) and aity
other portion ofthb Agreement tocludtog any anedtmcnts thereto,
the terms of the P'37 (as modified to EXHIBrT A) shall oontroL

21. THIRD PARTIES. Thb Agreement b betag entered into for
die sole benefit of the parties hereto, end notbtag hereto, express or
implied, b intended to or will confa any 1^ or equitdde ri^
benefit, or remedy ofarty nature upon any oto person.

22. HEADINGS. The beadtogsthrougbout the Agreement are for
reference purposes only, and the words contained thereto shall to
no way be held to expteto, modity, ampfify or aid to (he
Interpretation, construction or meaning of the provbtoas of thb
Agreement

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or moditytog
provbions set forth to the attnched EXHIBIT A are tocorpoiated
berrin by reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, along with Hs
agents end affiliates, shall, at Hs own cost end expense, execute any
addidoaal documenb and take such fiirther actions as may be
reasonably required to cany cut the provbtoos of thb Agreement
and give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

25. SEVBRABIUTY. In the event aity of the provbions ofthb
Agreement are held by a court of competent Jurisdiction to be
contnuy to any slate or federal tow, the lematotog provbions of
dib Agreement will remain to full fim and effect

26. EffTIRE AGREEMENT. Thb Agreement, which may be
executed to a number of counterparts, each of wbldi shall be
deemed an original, constHutes the entire egreement end
understanding between the parties, end supersedes an prior
agreements and understandtogs widi respect to die subject matter
hereof.
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GuardiattsHv Services
OffkeefPubtie Guardian
2 PlOsbtay Street, Suite 400

Concord, NH OSm

Tills Agreement is b^een the State of New Han9diire» atlmg by and throu^ the STATB OF NEW
HAMPSHIRE. DEPARTMENT OF CORRECnONS or ̂ Department" or "MHBQCT, 105
Pleasant Street. CoDConl.NH 03301 and OfiSceofPubHcOuardiaiL.(VC#I66528)C*SssO:&ci^aNew
HampdiiieNozhProfit Corporation, 2 PiOdnny Street, Suite 400. OmoordiNH 03301.

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed for the Contractor to provide Guardianship
Services for the NH Department ofCorrections.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideretion of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
in the *** forth tiwein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

EXHIBITA

SmiAL PROVISIONS

1. Section 14. Insurance (P-37,v. 2/23/2023)
**To modify the Form P-37, GcneialProvisions, Section 14. Insurance, paragr^ 14J, by dtanging
the secoi^ to last ^die dmise to rearh ̂ Dancellation notice by the Insurer to the Certificate
Holder will be deUvered in accordance with the policy provisions."

EXHIBITB

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. Purpose
To provide Quaidianshfy Services for individnals, herein after known as "persons,"

^ "wards," to safeguard die liberty and wdl-being ofpersons
who, because offimctioDal limitations, have suffered, are suffering, or are likely to sufGersifostantial
harm due to an inabifify to provide ftv personal needs for heatdi care, safety, or an inability to manage
their prtqierty or finani^af&irs. Th^ individuals may be mentally ill, devdopmentally disabled,
elderly and/or dnonically ill. OoanHandify services will be provided to persons at risk of harm or
estate whom die State has a re^iottsibility to safeguard parsumit to RSA>21>H:8, Deuaitmeut of
Corrections. flwwriifltnAip Senrfoea flhflll he provided in any and all of the New Hampshire Probate
Court jurisdictians and based on a cost per person per rate and accepted from associations
pursuant to Supreme Court qiprovaL

2. Terms of Contract
This Contract is to be effective July 1,2023 throo^ June 30,2026 with an option to renew for one
(1) addidonal period of up to three (3) years, only after the aiqnoval of the Commissioner of the NH
Department ofCorrections the Governor and Executive CouncTL

3. Terms of Contract
3.1. The Contractor shall provide Guardianship Services for the patient population that are under

die DqNQtment*8 care fiom the foUowing fecUidcs listed in the table, below:

PfWDsdiis Peblk SoCelr with Retptd, fro&ssIotnQstn, Dedlcatloa sod GBon8> u Cm Team

StmrfNH,DcpartmaepfO^^
mMcnofUtdtadaFontatcSer^ta wgescrw

rnnliwtfljrlnlrtfiU



GuardUmsMp Services
Office ofPubBc Guardian
2 PiBsbtay Street, Suite 400

Conatrd, NB 03S01

1 Table: B-1 1
1  SoofoemReslon-Southern NHCoirectioiiaiFadUties 1
NH St8t8prbanfbrMea-(NHSP-Mt 281 Nouh State Street ConoonLNH 03301

Secure Ptycfaiairic Unit (SPU/RwklentialTreotmeol
Unttomn

281 Nofth State Street Conoonl,NH 03301

NH Ccnectionfll Facflitv for Women-(NHCF-W) 42 Perimeter Road ConoonLNH 03301

Community Conecdon <- Men (Trtndtional Woric
Center)

275 Nonli State Street ConcoixLNH 03301

Community Corrections - Men rNnrth End House) 1 Perimeter Road Concord. NH 03301

Community Conectioas - Men fCalomel House) 126 Lowdl Street Manebests.NH 03104

Conrnmnlty Conectioas - Women fSha Fom) 60 Iron Woris Road CbnconLNH 03301

Ouatdian^ Services glwll be provided by the CoutRCtor for continued services to the
of dw NH Departnieot of Corrections even in the event

that thetr geogrqiduc location dianges to an alternative fodlity offoe Dqutrtment

Background
Hot aQ under the custody of the NH Dq)aitmeQt of Collections
have the ability to make informed decisions, therefore a pifolic guardian may need to be a^iointed
over the rf?i'^*nt^tie"*^Doa-edjudicated only or nu^ be over the iesident/|paticot/!non-adjufocatcd
and estate. TiusisdeterminedbasediqKNitfaeneedsQftbepn^iosedwardttherequestoftfaeguardian,
and a judgement ofthe court

Althm^ maiqr of these residents^patient8/!Q0tt*adjudictfed do not have an estate for a public guardian
to manage financial assets, tb^ do meet the inc^ia^tated or indigent standards that req[iufes the need
ofpublic gnardian sendees. A growing number of residents/jpatieatsfacm'adjudicated who need such
services have no fomify willing or able U> serve as guardians. Iherefore, to hebi> address fois need,
the NH Department of Corrections will require guardiansh^ services to be available to the
ry^^fntg^ticnts^ivon-gdjudic*'t*'^ rqnesented by guardlanshb^ dots.

Current Guardian Slots

The CTTTCiit averse tutmhw of guardians!^ dots needed for the NH Dqiartment of Corrections is
Ihiity-two (32). Ihe NH Department of Corrections antidpates the need to provide foree (3)
additional guaifoandiip dot for year one (1), two (2X and three (3) ofthe origfaial torn offoe contract
and three (3) addition*! guardiansh^ sl^ for year four (4), five (S) and dx (6) for foe optional
renewal poiod. lUs is ba^ on the number of commitments c^mnted for the Sexually
A^olent Predator Act, effective January 1,2007, and the increasing runhber of aging redd^ and
patients with physical, mental, and bdiavioral issues.

Proposed Guardian Slots
It is expected that the NH Department of Corrections win require additional guardianship dots above
the current status of thuty-two (32) to compensate for longer sentences associated with RSA13S-B
ppH our ffWTMiBttig dironically mentally ill and aging population.

FY24

7/01/23-6/30/24

FY2S

7/01/24-6/30/25

Fir 26
7/01^5-6/30/26

FY27

7/01/26-6/30/27

FYZS

7/01/27-600/28

Tit9

7/D1/2S-6/30/29

5100:35 Slots: 35 Slots: 35 Slots: 38 Slots: 38 Slots: 38

Smt^NHitUfartattMU^Coirtaicm
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GuardUmAipSer^ces
Office of PubUe Guardian
2 PiOsbwy Street, S*dte 400

Concord, NH 03301

7. Provision of GoardiansUp Services
7.1. The ContTBCtor shall provide guardian^p services to petsons at risk of banner estate whom

thft State hffff ^ cafi^ruerd pursuflnt to RSA135-C:60. Guardianship. I71-A:I0,
Services for the DevdopmenteHv Disabled and 13S-E, Involuntary Civil Commitment.

12. The to ngtions that am neceaaary
to cany out the prescribed by RSA 464-AfGuardiaos and Conservators, and RSA 547-
B, Public Guardianshjo and Protection Program, inchuli&g appointments as guardian, co-
gttarrtian^ conscivator Of tcmpotaiy ̂tardian ofthe person and/or estate of a ward.

73. The Contractor <rlmll provide guaidiansfa^ services to tnchide sufficient numbers of staff to
adequatdy cany out, for all rcadcnts^patienls/pon-odjudicated, all duties required by statute
letten of authority and the standards set forth in fob Cmttract

7.4. The Contractor gball not provide services to any resident/patient under any Contract that
result frw*! trirttnut prior written qynoval ofthe NH Dqwitment ofConecUona.

73. The Contractor gb»ti provide sauces to all residents/|patieots/hon-edjudic8ted approved for
services by the NH Dqnitmeiit of Corrections. If guardbnsh^ services are assessed as
imppn^niat^ refonab foall be made to foe New Harrqrfoire Disabilities Righis Center, hic.,
blewH^tfnp!;hitwt.ggfl1 Agaigtance, Of Other attorneys SO that an adminislrative appeal OT Other
appropriate i^;^l actions can be taken on bdialf of foe residents^patientsfoorhadpidicated.
Refonab for persons for guardianship services fixsn the Secure Psydiiatric Unit ̂  Prison
focOities dtall be made tfarou^ the NH Dqtartment ofCorrections, vducb shall review each
referral to ensure compUance wifo the principles contained in RSA 464-A.

7.6. Providing guardianfo^ services to reridents^ratlentsfaon-a^judicated, Che Contractor shall
adhere to the **Code of Eddes for GiMtrdfoics^ and the ̂ ^Guardianship Standards of
PrwdceT Both are avaflable throu^ the National Ouardiansh^ Association,
w ftt lyiyff Department ftrJmowledges that foe Standards on monthly
visits wifo wards are guidelines and that quaiteriy or more fiequent visits as required by
individual drcumstances b an acoqdable practioe).

7.7. In providing guardbnfoip and prot^on services to persons, the Contractor shall seek foe
fwft^inmm degree of restrictive fonn of intervention consistent with the preservation of the
dvil rigbtn and liberties of (he person serviced and with 1^ reqKmsflrilUies. The
Contractor, wifo the assbtanee ofthe State, contimially foall review and assess the status of
all pmcng saved and seek less restrictive forms of intervention where feasible and
flpprcprifltedi In aity actions brou^ in Probate Court to limit or otherwise reduce the scope
of a giiittriiiimHp over a person served, the State agrees that it b necessary to present the
State's position on the action pxt^osed.

73. The State recognizes that the Contractor has responsibilities as an indqMadeDt dedaon-
maker acting in a fiduciary capacity with respect to the persons to be served and the decisions
to be made on behalf of such persons shall not be directed or influenced by the State by any
action under this Agreement.

IS. No''direct services" foall be provided to wards (RSA 547-B: 611). Direct services indude
p^chofoenqy, case management, tran^x)rtation, finandal aid, or other social services
available thg D^rartrrwat or other govenunental or nonprofit agencies.

7.10. received by the NH Department of Coricctions in reference to the service
provided under the Contract vrill be r^erred to the Contractor for investigation. Results win
be provided to the Director of Medical & Forensic Services of the NH Department of

"*«*' PtafenloiwDmf Dedtenttoo and Cogrogtt a» OaeTcain
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Guar£ati^ipSer}wes
€^pee<ffPubOeGoarditm
2 PHlsbury Street, SuHe 400

Concord, NB 03301

Coxrectkmsmwritiogwitiiin thirty (30) days oonceming (he results of the investigation. A
rqH3it of aU writteo complaints against the Contractor shall obtain how each such
complaint was resolved

Provision of Goanfianship Responsibilities
The following is a general of foncdons to be provided by the Contractm for individuats so
named 1^ the Pndxate Court as wards ofa Conliactor. This listing and desulpUoo are not intended
to restate csdsting rales and rqidations already in place, but rather its purpose is to darify the
relntiondrfp of the Contractor with nspeet to its wards need and are receiving services in the
Secure Psychiatric Unit and prison feezes. The functions that shall be performed include:
8.1. Making decisions regarding the placement ofthe individual ward, utflfadngflie standards of

least restrictive environment and the best interests ofthc individual ward

8.2. Ensuring tibat all legally necessary stqrs are taken to enable an individual ward to receive
comiiielienslve evaluations and umipithensive treatment and services.

83. Adrocating for and requesting appropriate services for the individual ward iitfljTTng the
individual senriceAieatment process following established NH Department of
Corrections standanh and bw.

8.4. Bdng able to give or withhold consent to proposed medical care.
83. Being available to give or withhold consent, where such is legally necessary, for ngmficant

clinical or legal treatment or services.
8.6. Ensuringfoatward'sdvilrightsareprotectedwithinthecontextofthededsiontheguaidian

is moving on behalf of a ward and refiaining from unwarranted intrusion into the life of a
ward

8.7. Assuming responsibility frir any and all other duties as are stated in RSA464-A or as required
1^ the Pnfoate Court

83. All Che mqKffwIbnities ^rove are flfxitinggnt iqmn the actual authority granted to
eadr individual court order qwdtying the extent and scope of gnardiansh^ for eadr
individnaL

8.9. Eadrpdrlicguaitfi&nhasanafBnnativeobligationtobeoomeasfomiliaraspossiblewithhis
or her ward. Beyond the personal visits widi a ward and other impmtant and significant
people in a ward*8 life, (his obligation can also be met frirou^ close interaction wifo a ward's
case manages^case counsdor or other desfgnated NH Derailment of Corrections persoond
who drare a reeKmdbility for provitfing for the needs of fiie individual

8.10. Accent all guardiandiip service cases refbred by the NH Deraitment of Corrections. The
NH Dqiaitinent of Conections fhotl make every attempt to obtain a Release of Information
form from the proposed ward and dtare all information olitftinfd about the client with the
Cuutractorcxoert where pnfoilwtedfitgD doing 80 ly tow. To the extent possible, be involved
in the screening process for gaardiandih> nid protection cases. If protectioD services are

8s inaiyropriate, referrals wQl be made to the New Hampshire Disdnhtics Ri^its
Center, Inc., New Hanqishire Legal Assistance, or other attorneys so that and administrative
appeal or other rqipropriflte l^al action can be taken on bdialf of the hufividual ward.

8.11. Agrees to serve the current total persons recehnDgguaidtandiip and protection services plus
any new persons referred. While the NH Department of Coxrections shall provide s
p-omryfior totter of approval for each new case assigned, the Contractor may not bQI for
services until the CorUractor is actoaily qipointed as gusrc^ by a Probate Court; and

PnaeOag Pobdc Sttey Roped, PralcnloasUiav Dcdlcstlea sod CosroQtt u 0b8 Tom
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Guardianship Services
Office cfPtddie Guardian
2 PiOsbttty Street, Suite 400

Concord, NH 02301

8.12. In order to perfimn the stated Quaidiansh^ Responsibilities, guardians must be aware
of the fects or drcumstanceswhicfa may inqnctiQion decisions. In order to malm informed
dwfidCTB on of their ward, die p^Alic guardians diould, to die extent possibly
ftftnttniMlfy matirtftin wgnlfiwwit »rA flpproprifltecontaci wiA their ward so to assure that their
efforts best reflect the personal luefeiences, value system and desires of the ward. The
giwmtiam ntttst scclc out tnfoimatioo so that tb^ are fldly aware of all rides and benefits of
aqy pf(y)god as wcQ as aqy ahemative dial toey cadst.

9. Administrative Roles, Policies, Regulations and Policy and Procedore Directives
fVMiii'a^or iihftii coolly with ai^ at^Ucable NH Department ofCorrections Administrative Rules,
Poticies, R^iladons and PoU^ and Procedure DhecCives ̂ PD*8) to inchide but not limited to
PPD 371 (foimeriy 5 J)8): Personal Property PemdttedIn and RestrictedJnm Prison FadUdes.
Additional information can be located as a separate link:
httir7/wwwjih.gov/nhdoc/busmess/rfo bidding tool&jitm.

10. Protected HeahfalnfomiatioD (nil)
yhofi imy all Fill accordtog to the tefms of the Health Information

Portability ""d Acoonntabfiity Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191 and the Standards fiir Privacy and
Security of Indhmhialty Identifiable He?tih lofimnation, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and
amendments.

In perfonnh^ its obligations under the Contract, the Contractor may gain access to information of
thepatifflts, jiybtding «Ynfidentht1 faifofmation or Patient Health Information (PHI). The Contractor
Anti not use devdc^red or obtam^ during the peifoiiuaime or actjuired or devdoped
by reason of die Contract, exo^ as is directly connected to and necessary fbr the Contia^or*8
petfimnance under the Contract

The Contractor to the oonfidcntiality of and to protect from miauthonzcd us^
piblWrBtfont ifiprodtiction, and all infbnnation ofthe patient that becomes available to the

COntractOT in cfimfcflirn pfrfirwrnnnce under the CoptrgcL In die event of unauthorized use
of or disdosure of the patient's infonnation, die Contractor shall Immedratdy notify the NH
Dqiaitment ofCorrections.

All fftadstical, and/or technical data supplied by NH Department of ConectiODS
tff tip OmtT^Tr Hie Contractor is leqdred to use reasonable care to protect the

ftf Aity use, salc OT offering of this data ID aity figm Ity thc CogtraOnf, Of
aity individod or entity in the Contractor's charge or employ, will be consdered a violation of this
Contract, and may result in contreot tenninatkm. In addition, such conduct may be reported to the
State Athnsey Oenetal ibr possible criminal prosecution.

C^ontractor acknowledges that CCrrecticnd Institutions and other custodial fiicilities under HlPAA's
Privacy Role, covered entities may disdose the protected health informadon (PHI) of a person to the
cciiectionalfiidlityorother"custodial"fecilitydialhasliim/herinlawftil custody. Purposes include:
• Provision of hiwlthfiare to the individual;
• The hedlh and safety ofother people incarcerated.

P«*pe«!*,ftqr<ailsotgm.Dcfflcatl80oodCocrMBMOBsTcsm
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(SuariBoMp Services
Office efPttbOc Guardian
2 PUbbary Street, Suite 400

Concord, m 03301

• The health and safety of oflSoen or other employees of the oorrectionalinsthutioii, or posons
involved in tranqKJittng people under dqttttmeotal custody; or

• Other activities necessaiy to the ̂ ^maintenance of safety, security, and good order" of such
institutioos.

Correctional fecflities may use PHI for all the purposes for which it can be disclosed. Exan^lesif
•  There Is a threat of jptmedfate danger to oneself or to others.
• To dhrlosf infennalion leading to suqddon that a duld, the dderiy, or disabled is in danger of

abuse or neglect The appropriate ageo^ must be notified.
• Disclosure ofinformatkmrdattng to a threat to the security of the institotioa
• Mental Health staff are presented with a oouit Older.

An individual is no kmger a person under Dquutmeotal cusfedy when released on parole, probation,
supeivised release or otherwise is iu> longer in lawfiil custody.

11. Prison Rape EOminatioii Act (PREA) of2003
Contractor ghnfi cmx^l^ with the Prison R^>e Elimination Act ̂ REA) of 2003 (Federal Law 42
U.S.dS601 et seq.), with all rqiplicable Federal FREA standards, and wife all State policies and
standards related to PREA for preventing detecting, monitoring, investigating, and eradicating casf
form of abuse witldn facflhies/programsA^Sees owned, operated, or contracted. Contractor
acknowledges dwt, jn addftfi^ to sdf-monitoring requircntonts, the State will conduct compliance
monhop"C of PREA standards, which may require an outside indqiendent audit Additional
infonnation can be located as a separate link:
httD'7/wwwJih.gov/nhdoc/busmess/rfo Mdding tookhtm.

12. Change of Ownership
In the event that the Contractor diould change ownership for any reason whatsoever, the NH
|VpftT*mi»nf nf rimreriom bow* th<i> njtfInn of ennllmtttig trndw th« rnntiM< wtfe fee Contractor
OT it9 mTTWyyra fr fwrigng term oif itw Cnntrart, enntiiming wider the Contract
wife the Contractor or, its successors or, assigns for sudi period of time as detennined necessary 1^
the NH Depaitmem of Corrections, or tenninating the Contract.

13. Contractor Pestgrtwtrd Uaison
Contractor a representative to act as a liaison between fee Contractor and the
Department of Corrections for tlm duratioo of the Contract and aiQ^ renewals feareofl The Contractor
fhflii, within five (5) days after fee award of the Contract: submit a written identification end
notification to NH Dqiaitmeat ofCoirectioiis offee name, title, address, tdephonedk fox number, of
its organization them as a duly audmrized iqnesentative to whom all cotre^xmdence,
pfiSoial notices and requests related to fee Contractor's perfbnnance under the Contract will be
directed.

13.1. Any written notice to the Contractor shall be deemed sufficient when dqiosited fa tto U.S.
mail, prqiaid and addressed to fee person designated by fee Contractor under this
paragraife.

PfffcHi: fcwfarianrihm, DcdleattoQ and Ccagay giOacTaua
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GuarJiandtip Senices
Office of PttbUcGuanBatt
2 PiOsbmy Street, Suite 400

Cotteord,m 03301

132. The chflU have the right to dsmge or substitute the name of the individual
described as deemed necessary, provided that any such change is not effective until the

nf thg NH nqMntmem of Concctions BctusUy receives notice of this chai^
132. to the named Liaison by the Contractor must be nntde in writing and forwarded to

NH Dqtartment ofCorrections, Director ofMedical and Forensic Sendees, or designee, P.O.
Box I806,Cooconl,NH 03302.

14. Contracts Designated ResponsiMlitifS
Contractor's designated liaison ritaU be responsible for
14.1. Representing foe Contractor on all matters pertflintng to the Contract ami any reiuwals

thereof. Suchafepresentative8hallbe8QtfaorizedandeaQM)weredtoiepresenttheConlTactor
r^arding all aspects ofthe Contract and any renewals thereof.

142. Monitoring foe Cratractor's conq^liance with the terms of foe Contract and azQ^ renewals
thereoL

142. Recdving and re^Mmding to sU inquines and requests made by NH Department of
Corrections in foe time frames and format qiecified 1^ NH Dqmtment of Coxrntions in the
Contract and any renewals thereof and

14.4. Meeting with rtpresentatives ofNH Department of Corrections on a periodic or as^ieeded
basis toiesdve issues, whidimay arise.

15. NH Department of CorrectiODS liaison RcsponsOdlities
NH Department of Corrections* Commtsstmier, or designee^ shall act as liaison between the
Contractor and the NH Department of Corrections for the duration ofthe Contract and any renewals
tfaemoC The NHDqMitmentofCoiTections reserves foe right to change its rquesentative, at its sole
discretion, during foe term of the Contract, and riiall provide foe Contractor with written notice of
sochdnn^ The NH Department ofCorr^onsiquesentativesfaaU be reqjonstble for
15.1. Representing foe NH Departmdit of Corrections on all matters pertaining to the Contract

The rqinesentative be aufoorised and enqxrwered to iquesent the NH Dquutment of
COTTeTtionflr^^"ding all sq^ectspffoe Contract, sub|ect to the qqnovaloftlmGcvemor and
Executive Council ofthe State of New Hanqriture, where needed.

152. Monitoring compliance wifo the tenns offoe Contact
152. Responding to aU inquiries aitd requests rdated to the Contract made by the Contractor, under

the fenng and in the timeframes qtedfied by foe Contract
15.4. Meeting wifo the Contractor's representative on a periodic or as^needed basis and resolving

issues, triddi arise.
152. Infoiinittg the Contractor of any discretionary action taken by the NH Dqnitinent of

Corrections pmsuant to the provision of the Contract
15.6. Director of Medical and Forensic Services or designee may order foe Contractor to take

specific actto the Dq>aitment deems medically or administrativdy appropriate.

Id. Data Analysis and Rqrorting
16.1. The proride queuteriy rqwits to the Division of Medical and Forensio

Services, which infh'4^ but is not limited to, the total number of re8idents/patient8/iao&-
adjudicried receiving services, month, rite, guardian and how maiqr visitsfoderactions. This

PreawUaa PabOe SftSHy wftb Respect. Piofeuteiallsn, DedlcattoD 8Bd Coaraeo Bs Osfi Torn
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Guardianship Services
Office efPiMic Guar^Ran
2Pi(tdmryStreettSuiie400

Concord, NH 03$01

data win gnfthie on-going analysis by the NH Department of Corrections of the most cost-
effective options whm oonsidoing gnaidianshi^ services.

162. The CoatFBctor shall provide a Sample Report that reflects the requiiemeois in section 16.1.,
above.

162. The Contractor shall provide an accurate measure of cost per person per day cjqienditures for
the program and pnmde this quarteriy to the Director ofMedical and Forensic
Sovices at the NH Department of Corrections.

16.4. A Fi'wl Rqtftrt nf fldvMrtflges and disadvantages of how guardianship sendees are provided
indttdeai^ other hems in the scope ofwotk not covered in earlier reports. TheRnalRqtort
is due tfdity (30) d^ after the expiration date of the Contract

162. dwii conducted with the NH PepartmiSTit of Conections and hddperiodicallyT
upon ^reement, during the Contract tenn to review the scope of woifc» discuss die
cost analyses, explain rqxnts, and answer questions.

16.6. All material develqied or acquired by dte Contractor, as a result ofwoik under die Contact
shaU become die pnqiettyoftheSti^ ofNew Hanqiriiire. No material or rqmrts prepared

the Contractor ftffH be rrieased to the pubUc widiout the prior written consent ofdie NH
Department ofConecUons.

16.7. Any rqxnts and/or requested by the NH DepaitnwQt of Corrections forwarded
to NH D^nxtment of Corrections, Director of Medical and Forensic Services, or designee,
P.O. Boot 1806, Concord, NH 03302

16.8. It is the intent oftheNHDqiartmeotofCoirections to work with the Contractor so that the
Contractor can provide arty rqiorting requirements that meets die Dqiaitment'a needs.

17* Peifonnance Evatoatioo
NH Dqiartment of Coxicctfetts at its sole discretion monitm' and evaluate the Contractor's

widi the Teons and Conditions and adherence to the Sccqie of Services of the Contrut
for the U& of die Contract and any renewals thereof!

18. FeKormance Assessment
NHDqiartment of Corrections shall, at its sole discretion:
18.1. Inform the Contractor ofanydissadsfection with the Contractor's performance and include

lequlieuients for corrective action.
182. Terminate die Contract as permitted by law, iftheNH Department ofCorrections determines

that the (Contractor

182.1. Does not comply with the terms of the Contract
1822. Has lost orhasbeeonotifiedofiiiteotiontolosedieircertifieation/liceDSure^ieimits.
1822. The Contractor shall fully coordinate the performance acthdUesofdie Contract with

those of the NH Department of Coirccticns. As the work of the Contractor
progresses, advice and information on matters covered by the Contra^ shad be made
avaflableby the Contractorto the NH Department ofCorrections as requested by the
Dqiartmcnl duoughout the effective period of the Contract

19. Bankruptcy or Insolveney Proceeding Notification
19.1. Upon fiHng for any bankruptcy or insoWen^ proceeding by or against the Contractor,

whether voluntary or involuntary, or iqion the qqiointinent of a receiver, trustee, or assignee

PrffBTOttng Safrty yfth Pmfeotecanim, Dtdkatton and Cearane •» OceTcm
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GuardUutship Services
Office of Public GuardUut
2 PiOsbary Street, Suite 400

Concord, NB 033OI

for the benefit of aeditora* the Cootnctor must notify the NH Depaxtment of Corrections
inunedistdy.

19^ l^rnn learning of the fictions herein identified, theNH Dquutment of Corrections resenres
tlm li^ at its sole discretion to dtber cancel the Contract in whole or in part or re<«ffinn the
Contract in whole or in part

20. Embodtmect of tfae Contract

fii the event of a Iq i<mgn«g« between the documents referenced bdow, the provisions and
requirements set forth and/or referenced in the n^otiated document noted in ̂.1.1. and 20.1.2. dull
govern. TheNH Department ofConections reserves the right to clatify any contractual reUtiondify
in writiog with the concurrence of the Contractor, and sudi written darification shall ̂ wem in case
ofconflict with the applicable requiremeats stated in the Form P-37 (v. 2/23/2023) and/or Bsdiibit A,
B&C.

20.1. Order ofPrecedence;

20.1.1. NH Department ofCoirectioos Contract Agreement Form P-37 (v. 2/23/2023); and
20.1.2. NH Department of Corrections Exhibit A, B & C.

21. CanccDatlon of Contract

NH Department of Conecttons rmy caitcel die Contract at aiQr time for breadi of contractual
obligatioiis by providing the Contractor wiUi a wiittea notice of such cancellation. Should the NH
Dqurtntont of Corrections exercise its righl ̂  cancel the Contract, the caimellation diall become
effective on the date as qiedfied in the Notice of Canodladoa sent to the Contractor.
21.1. The NH D^KUtment of Coxrecdoos reserves that right to terminate the Contract without

pcnalfy or recourse giving the Contractor a writtenimtice of such tennirution at least dxfy
(60) days prior to tfae effective termination date.

21.2. The NH Department of Corrections reserves the right to cancel this Contract for the
convenience of die State widi no peoatdes by gfying tfae Contractor sixfy (60) days* notice
ofsdd cancellation.

22. Audit Requirement
Contractor agrees to comply widi any lecommendations aiishig from pertodic audits on the
perfbnnance of tfae Contract, providing that tfae lecommendatioos do not require unreasonable
hiwt<liip, adiidi would normally affect die value of die Contract. In addition, give the Contractor
prior notice of ai^ on^te visit by die Dqnrtmeot's Director of Medical & Fhrensic Services or its
agent(8) to conduct an audit, and fuithernotify the Contractor of any records which the Director of
Medical & Forensic Services or its agents may wish to review.

23. Notification
NH Department of Corrections gbati be responsible for notifying the Contractor of any policy or
procedural rfymggB the extracted servfees at least diirfy (30) days before the

ftf giiA pftlley or pmeeAife. The Contractor duUinqilement (he dui^eson the date
specified by the Dqurtment
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Guardianship Services
Office cf Public Guardian
2 KQdmry Street, &tUe 400

Concord, NH OSSOl

24. Infonnation

24.1. In perfonning its obligations under the Contract, the Contractor may gain access to
infonnation of the lesidents/jpatients/notHuiliudic^ residents inchtding confidential
infonnation. The Contractor dsU not use infonnation developed or obtained during the
pofinrnance o^ or acqohed or developed by reason of the Cmttiact, except as is directiy
connected to and necessary for the Contractor's perfonnance onder the Contract

24.2. Contractor agrees to mntntiitn the confidentiality of and to protect fiom unauthorized use,
disclosure, publication, rqiroductkm, and all infinmation of the resideQt/^)atieat/hon-
adjudicated residents fiiat becomes available to tite Contractor in connectxon with its
performance under the Contract

243. In the event of unauthorized use or disdosure of the resideiitsApaticot/!poo-adjudicated
resident infonnation, die Contractor ritaQ immediately notify the NH Department of
^rfOirecuoiis.

24.4. All material deveh^ml or acquired by the Contractor, as a result of worictmder the Contract
shall become the property of the State of KewHampritire. No material or reports prepared
by the Contiactor dttU be released to the public witiiout the prior written consent cf NH
Department of Corrections.

243. AH fmmcial, statistical, penonnel and/or technical data supplied by NH Department of
Corrections to the Contiactor are confidential The Contractor is reqitired to use reasonable
care to protect the confidenlialify of such data. AiQfUse^ sale or offering ofthis data in aiQf
fimn by the Contractor, or any individual or entity in the Contractor's charge or employ, will
be considered a violatiraofthe contract, and may resuh in contract temimation. Inaddltion,
sudi conduct may be reported to the State Attorney Qeneral for possible crimioal
prosecution.

25. Contractor Fersonnd

25.1. Omtrador shall ftgprt of ̂  Contrggter rfiall perform all eervices required
by the Contract The Cf>ntT?d<^ shall guarantee that ail personnel providing the services
required by the Coitiiact are qualified to peffcnn their assigned tasks.

253. The Department shaD be advised ofand approve in writing at least ten (10) days in advance
of such soy pennanent or temporaiy changes to or deletions rite Contractor's
management 8iq)endsoiy, or key professicmal penonnd, who dhecfiy hiqiact the
deliverables to be provided under tire Contract

26* Otb^ Contractnal Docoments Required by ffte NH DqiKUtmeot of Corrections
Form Numba P-37 (versloa 2/23/2023); Certificate of Good Standing (COOS); Certificates of
Authority/Vote (COA/COV); Certificate of Insaiancc (001); Administrativo Rules, Rules of
Conduct Ccnfidoitiality of Information Agreements; PREA Acknowledgement Form; Mission
Statement Recent Audit Fioaitdal Statements, Board of DiitctoxsTDustees and Buriness Address
and Tdq)hone Ihimbets, list of Fersonnd, Resumes, and Annual Salary per Position, and ALT-
W9 R^straticm be i^ltcable for the requested contracted activities and, for the exc^rtion of
the Certificate of Good Standing (COGS), ate located as a separate link on the NH Departtnent of
Corrections website: hitp!//www.iih.gev/nhd9g^|«i?tp«^rfp bidding toolsJilm.
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Gttttrilianship Services
Office ofPubBc GaartBan
2 Pmsbary Street, Suite 400

Concord, NH 03B01

27. Spedal Notes
27.1.1. Notwidistandiiig the foregoing, or any provision of this Agreement to the conliaiy, in no

event gtwii dianges be aUowcd nuufify the ''Completioa Dat^ or Price limitation" of
the Agreement

27.12. Contractor riiall provide, for the life ofthe Contract and any renewals thereof the minhnum
Ocneral liability ccverage Co be no less than $1,000,000.00 per eadi occunence and
$2,000,000.00 general aggregaS&

27.13. Contractof shall name the State of New Hanyshire as addittntwlly insured for Ae life of the
Contract and aity renewals thereof

27.1.4. Contractor provide, for Uie life of die Contract and any renewals thereof^ proof of
Wciken* Conqieosation and Enqdoyen* liability Insurance.

The remainder of thispt^bbuendonaify blank.
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2:.Piil^bii^\Sifc^^^^
Cniicnrd, Nfj 03301,

1.

KSTIl\l^ST:Ep-BljpG^^^

■Estlriihtcd BudgctiCCost IVopqsalJ -SoutiicjtnXSurtrdiahsl^
\A\ EsiininlcdjBucigcl'Schcdulc;^^^^ be cpmplclcdjby ijiqGoiUractor.

»  ̂ I *^1 • sT? r> -,1'.

■■ .FY>24'»;* ; '5 '  :S'9;6S 35 ;SI-24'006.s6

FY25- ' S.9.97 35 S12'7;'366.75

lTY-26. $10.27 35 S13l.i;9.9.25

.  FY 27 ,^:i,b.58 38 ■.S146;7V4.60.-

.  FY28**:: Sl,0'.90 . .  38 ■,SV5K597:20

FY,29 . sn.23 38 . Sl'55;760.r0

1.2.

NOTE: ^.Tlic ConinjciorsliallJridicaic,thc co.« pcrday njid riumbcr:prslot,<! thcyican provide annually.
•VsiQic'Fiscai\V<aV-:24''&-2S are;f

Original ContracLPcriod Estunaicd Yearly.Costs:.

■  ;PYf-2024*^ , :Sl24-Q00i8Q. ,

1.12: TY^(^5;^PdteljQoslvY^^ 'Sl27:366^5 , .

1.2.3. FY,2g26Totn!,Cost, Yrar 3: SBl.'l99.-25

■ 1-.2.4. Esiiniatcd-TotalvOnginaj Gpntnicl Pcripd . • S3S2.566.86

1.3. Opii.ohnpllcncwal .epmmcl Pcridd Eslini^^^^^^

1.3.1. py 20.27 dqlai Cost, Ycar 4: . S146j.744.60

K3.2. PY 202s** Total Gp.sl, Year 5; Si 51.597.-20

1.3.3: FY:2p29 Tolal .Gost, Year 6: $155j760.ia

1.3.4. KsiiinaiedTotal:.Renewal eoiTrnclPcri .S454.101.90.

,  llroMipiliin i;ut>IIc'.Sa|'tly wiUi:Rc.v|)cci; I>>jfcjiiu!!a|tsm;iDcUicaUdn on pnc.Tcnni.
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GmmSottsbip Services
Office pfPobUeCtumUaa
2 PiUsbary Street, Suite 400

Cottcordf NH OSSOl

L  Metitod of Payment
2.1. The monthly fee for sendee pf^nieDt(8) owed to the Contractor shell be made in the fi)Uowiog

month in whkfa services were pctfonned and doll be based on the contracted cost per person per
derate. This cost per person per day rate will be ejdeoded through the date in ̂vhidi the client
dies m is teomnated from services.

77, ' The monthly fee (total due) for services performed shah be calculated as follows:
2.2.1. Mnh^^ig die ourzxber of casdoftds (wards) by the number of days served in a

service mc^ by the ward rate; or
7,7,7, Multipfying the ward rate by the number ofdays served in a service month for eadi

listed i^deot^ntient served.
23. Ihe monthly statistical rqioit gbaH document die number of resideots/patientsfoon*

ward? on r^>n*niernr*s casrinflH dnring the service monlh. The Statistics shall
qiecify die number of persons serviced by type of services, the names of cases added or
dosed daring the mondL Orders for new guanfiandi^i^qioiiitments shall be attadied to the
statistics as soon as th^ become availdile. Residents/^«lients/!pon-adjudicated added during
the service month for which the prior oj^soval has not been obtained, but for who the
Cpntractor is must be formally andtorized to receive sendees before
th^ are calculated into the anthorized p^nment for the service month. A brief
CTpiftqfttjon be (uovided for sxqt client for udiom services have been terminated.

2.4. The oiigmal invoice shall consist ofdie following parts:
2.4.1. Part One; Reimbuisemeat, itemized by the following information:

2.4.1.1. Organization name;
2.4.13. Invoice date and number;
2.4.13. Bin To address;
2.4.1.4. Service month and contract period;
2.4.13. Nomber of caseload^ and
2.4.1.6. Total due.

2.43. PartTwo: Statistical Information, itemized by the following information:
• Names ofwanls(iestdents^ents/non-edjadicated) who recdved services;
•  hbmesofwards added during service month; and
• Names ofwards removed from caseload.

23. Services are to be fatvoiced monthly commeodng thiiQr 0^) days after the start of service.
2.6. Invoices be sent to the NH Dqrartmeot of Collections, Financial Services, P.O. Box

1806, Concord, NH 03302, ordesigmforapprovaL The To** address on foe invoice
shaU be NH Department of Corrections, Finmsdal Services, P.O. Box 1806, Concord, NH
03302.

2.7. The NH Department of Corrections m^ adjust the payment amount identified on a
Contractor's monthly invoice. The NHDepaitmeiitofCoxiections shall suspend pajmtent to
an invoice if an iirvoice is not submitted in accordance with the utsliitfJions established by
the NH Dqrartment of Corrections.

2.8. The Final R^ort as described in foe Scope of Services, Exhibit B, Data Analysis and
Reporting, sh«n eccompar^ foe invoice of foe contract period.

IS. Rehnbuisenient for services for persons who have not been screened by the Department will
not be reinibufsed under the Contract In instances where guardiansh^ ̂ ipointm^ are

wifoout approval granted fitun the Dqtartment, rehnbursement for guardlansh^
services nmy be possible when satisfoctory documentation can be presented that such

Pvomettag Potdk Sa&ty wttti Respect nraftotoiaQsia, DcdlcsUes sad Coarago M OacTeam
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Guardianship Services
Office of Public GuerdUm
2PmAuryStreet,Suite400

Coneordt NH 03301

circumstances occuned, and reasonable efforts were made to decline such appotntments.
fiitrfi Hnwim^-ntatlnn rfiflU hft infJiiHfld to an original invmcfe. Ifthe documentation provided
is satisfactory, the Depaitmeat may make payments for appointments made without approval
as lox^ as wards are persons for whom foe State has a responsibility to 8af(^uaid pursuant to
RSA21-H:8.

2.10. Payment rfmil be to the and address identified in the Contract as the "Contractor"
unless: (a) the Contractor has autborized a different name and majling address in writnig or
(b) a different nairtf- and mailing address in an of&ctal State of New Hampshire
Contractor R^istiation A|^lication Form; or (c) unless a court of law qwcifies otheawise.
The Contractor not invoice federal tax. Tte State's tax-exempt certificate number is
026000618.

2.11. Forcontiactingpmposes^theState'sFiscalCalendarYearstaitsonJuly IstandendsonJune
30^ ofthe following year.

The remainder cf this page is intentionally blank.
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GuardiattshipSernees
Office of Public Guardian
2 PiO^ry Street^ StOU 400

Concord, NH 03301

Glossary of Terms

Various tenns aivl abbreviations are used within the RFP that may not be familiar to all readers. This
glossary term and acronym list is an attempt to help make reading these documents easier and more
understtmdable.

Term Acronym Dcscrintion/Definltion

Altemate W-9 Fonn ALTW-9

Governor and Executive Council Q&C

Healdi Insurance Poit^Uty and
Accountability Act

HIPAA

NewHamoshire NH

NH Deoaitmeot of Conections NHDOC

NH State Prison for Men NHSP-M

NH Correctional Facility for Women NHCF-W

Policies, Procedures and Directives PPD^s

Prison Elimination Act PREA Prison Rape Elimination Act of
2003 (PREA) is the first United States
federal law passed dealing with the
sexual assault of orisoncni.

Residential Treatment Unit RTU

Revised Statutes Annotated

RSA

Fonns the codified laws of the state

subordinate to the New Hampshixe
State Constitution.

Secured Psydiiatrie Unit SPU

State nscal Year FY

State of NH Long Form Contract P-37

Transitional Houains Unit THU

TYansitiooal Work Center TWO

The remainder of thispage is iatentionatfy blank.
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I» David M. Scanlan» Secretary of State of the State ofNew Hampshire, do hereby certify that OFFICE OF PUBLIC

GUARDIAN Is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Coiporation roistered to tnuisact business in New Hampshire on July 14,1983.1

further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been ncdvtd and is in good standby as

far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 304S

Certificate Number: 0005891771

fiSa

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State ofNew Hampshire,

this 2nd day of November A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

2020 NONPROFIT REPORT

Filed

Dale Fikd: 7^020

EfTective Date: 7/S/2020

Business ID: 30453

William M. Gardner

Secretary of Slate

BUSINESS NAME: OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN

BUSINESS TYPE: Domestic Nonprofit Corporation

BUSINESS ID: 30453

STATE OF INCORPORATION: New Hampshire

CURRENT PRINCIPAL OFHCE ADDRESS CURRENT MAILING ADDRESS

2 Pillsbury St. Suite 400
Concord, NH, 03301, USA

NONE

PRINCIPAL PURPOSE(S)

NAICSCODE NAICS SUB CODE

OFFICER / DIRECTOR INFORMATION

NAME BUSINESS ADDRESS TITLE

Roger Jobio 1000 Elm Street, IStfa Floor, Manchester, NH, 03101, USA President

Michael Fuerst PC Box 1485, Ciaremont, NH, 03743, USA Secretary

Raymond Bower 259 County Farm Drive, Suite 204, Dover, NH, 03820, USA Treasurer

Nina Gardner 976 New Hampton Rd, Sanbomton, NH, 03269, USA Director

Eugene Van Loan 95 Marlcct Street, Manchester, NH, 03101, USA Director

Robert Wells 900 Elm Street, Manchester, NH, 03105, USA Director

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the statements on this report are true to the best of my information, knowledge and belief.

Title: Antborizrf Signer
Business Name: Office of Public Guardian

Signature: Andrea SIsson

Name of Signer Andrea SIsson

Title of Signer Chief Financial Officer

Mailing Address - Corporation Division, NH Department of State, 107 North Main Street, Room 204, Concord, NH 03301-4989
Physical Location - State House Annex, 3rd Roor, Room 317,25 Capitol Street, Concord, NH
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>\CORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (UM/DO/VYYY)

3/1/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIRCATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If tho certificate hokler Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pol}cy(ies) must bo endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
(he terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endofsement(8).

PRODUCER

THE ROHLET AGENCY INC.

45 Con8titutd.on Avenue

P.O. Box 511

Concord NH 03302-0511

Rachel Giunta

(603)224-2562
lAie.Ne):

AMmss- rgiunta^rowleyagency.com

msuRews) affording coverage NAIC 0

INSURER A: Ohio Casual tv Contpanv 24074

INSURED

The Office of the Public Guardian, LLC

2 Pillsbury Street

Suito 400

Concord NH 03301

iNSURER8:Ea8tem Alliance Insurance Groxio

DfSURERC:

INSURERD:

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUaES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE F=OR THE POUCY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITKSTANDtNG ANY REOUIREMENT. TERM OR CONOmON OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIRCATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO AaTHE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POUOES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

MSR

LIB.
TYPE OF mSURANCE rrmiTOi POUCY NUMBER UMns

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LiAfitUTY

BCLAD4SA1A0E I OCCUR

GENL AGGREGATE LOUT APPLIES PER:

□ SS □POLICY LOC

OTHER:

BXO<22)S94I2402 2/S/2023 2/S/2024

EACH OCCURRENCE
DAUAeeTOUffTEC
PREMISES rE« neeurrencel

M£D EXP (Any on» p<r»Cft)

PERSONAL a ACV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PROOUCTS • COUP/OP AGG

HW/hofrowmd

COMStNED SINGLE UMIT
tE« tddanll

1.000,000

1,000,000

15,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

1,000,000

AUTOMOBILE UABajTY

ANY AUTO
All OWNED
AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

HIRED AUTOS

SCKEOUIEO
AUTOS
NONOWNED
AUTOS

BODILY INJURY {Per scddwit)
PROPERTY DAMAGE
fPer trident)

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

OCCUR

CLADISAtAOE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

OED I X I RETENTIOH S 10.W OSO(22)5»4t2402 2/S/2023 2/S/2024
TER
STATUTE

1,000,000

1.000.000

WORKERS COMPENSATION
ANO EMPLOYERS'UABtUTY
ANT PROPRIETORffWRTNERIEXECUnVE
OFFICERAtEMBER EXaUD^
(UendatorytnNH)
If wee. imderPE^RIPTION OF OPERATIONS beloww

Y/N

Y N/A

Bxel: Hlebeel feeret.

BeyMond Bewet 4 Soger

01-0000124B69-02

3A Stete: MB

OTH-
ER

E.L EACH ACCIDENr

•/30/2022 0/30/2023 El. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE

E.L DISEASE • POLICY LtMfT

500.000

500.000

500.000

DESCRtPTION Of OPERATIOKS / LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD101, AddMenM Remerto Sriiedute. may be atuehad If mere epeee Is reaulrad)
Covering operations usual to insxired througfti out the policy term. When required by written contract,
certificate holder, Stato of NH Dept of Corrections is an additional insured as respects general
liability.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

St:ato of NH Dept of Corrections
PO BOX 1806
Concord, NH 03302-1806

J_L

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUaES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVEREO IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHOROEO REPRESENTATIVe

Rachel Giunta/RG

® 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORDACORD 25 (2014/01)



NH DEPARTMENT OF CORRECnONS

ADMINISTKATIVE RULES

COR 307 Items Considered ContiBband. Contraband shall consist o£
a) Ai^ substance or item \^iose possession is unlawfitl for the person or the general public

possessiztg h Infihidtng but not limited to:
(1) narcotics
(2) controlled drags or
(3) automatic or concealed weapons possessed by those not licensed to have them.

b) Any firearm, simulated fireann. or device designed to propel or guide a projectile against a
person, animal or target

c) Any buUets, cartridges, projectiles or similar items designed to be projected against a
pemon, animal or target

d) Any escplosive device^ bomb, grenade, dynamite or dynamite cap or detonating device
including primem, primer eoi^ explosive powder or similar items or shnulations of these
items.

e) Ai^ drug hem, whether medically prescribed or not, in excess of a one day supply or in
such that a person would suffer intoxication or illness If the entire a>vilable
quantity were consumed alone or in combination whh other available substances.

0 Any intoxicating beverage.
^ Sums ofmoney or negotiable instruments in excess of$100.00.
h) Lock-incfcing khs or tools or instnoneots on picking locks, making keys or obtaining

sunqjthious entry or exit.
i) Ute following ty^ofitems in the possession ofan individual who is not in a vehicle, but

diall not be contraband stored in a secured vehicle:

(1) knives and knife-like weapons, dubs and dub-like weapons,
tobacco, alcdtol, drugs including prescription drags unless prior epprovai is
granted in writing by the fitcUity Warden/d^gnee, or Directoi/designee,

(3) maps ofthe prison vicinity or sketches or drawings or pictorial representations of
the &cUities, its grounds or its vicinity,

(4) pomogn^ or pictures of visitors or prospective visitors undressed,
(5) radios capable oif monitoring or transmitti^ on the police band in the possession

ofother than law enforcement officials,
(6) identification documents, licenses and credentials not in the possession of the

person to whom pr(q)erly issued,
(7) ropes, saws, giappl^ hooks, fishing line, masks, artificial beards or mustadies,

cmting wb^ or string rope or line inqir^nated widi cutting material or similar
items to facilitate escapes,

(S) balloons, cortdoms, false-bottomed containers or other containers which could
fadlitate transfer of contraband.



COR 307.02 Contraband on prison grounds is prohibited. The possession, uauspoit, introductioo, use,
sale or storage of contraband on the prison grounds ndthout prior approval of the commissioner of
corrections or his designee is prohibited under the provision of RSA 622124 and RSA 622:25.

COR 307.03 Seardies and Inspections Authorized.

a) Any person or property on state prison grounds shall be subject to search to discover
contraband...
TYavd onto prison grounds shall constitnte implied consent to search for contraband. Insucfa
cases where oooseot exists, the visitor will be ̂ vea a dioioe of eitber <^<mm*it1iitg to
die search or fanmediatdyleatdng the prison grounds. Nothittg in this rale however, prevents
non^onseosual searches in sftuaticns where probable cause exists to believe that the visitor is
or had attempted to introduce contraband into the prison pursuant to the law of New
Hampshire concerning search, seizure and arrest

b) All motor vehicles parked on prison grounds shall be locked and have the keys removed.
Custodial personnH check to insure that vehicles are lodrod and shell visually inspect
the plain view iixtcrior of the vehicles. Vddcles discovered imlocVrd shall be searched to
insise that no contraband is present. Contraband discovered during searches shall be
confiscated for evidence, as dtall conUaband discovered during plain view inqiecrions.

c) All persons entering the facilities to visit with resideats or stafi; or to perfinm services at the
fiicUitles or to tour the bdlities shall be subject to having thdr persons diecked All hems
and clothing carried into the institution shall be searched for contraband.

Roger P. Jobin, President

Name Sienatbri Date



NH DEPARTOENT OF CORRECTIONS

RULES OF CONDUCTFOR PERSONS PROVIDING CONTRACT SERVICES

1. in of (he foUowmg scdvUies with persons under dq}aitmeatal control is strictly
prohibited:

a. Any contact, induding conospondence, other than the perforroance of your sendees
forn^cfa you have been contracted.

b. Giving or selling of anything
c. Accqning or baying anything

2. Any person providing contract services tidto is found to be under the influence of intoxicants or drugs
wOl be removed fiom fitctUty grounds and barred fixNn future entry to NH Department
ofCorrectioQs property.

3. Possesaon of any item considered to be contraband as defined in the New Hampshire code of
Administrative Rules, Part COR 307 is a violation of the rules and the laws of the State of New
Hanqrddre and may result in legal action under RSA 622:24 or other statutes.

4. In the event of ai^ emergency situation, i.e., fire, disturbance, etc., you will follow the instructions of
the escorting staff or rqrort imme£ately to the closest available st^.

5. AH rules, regulations and policies of the NH Department of Collections are designed for the safety of
the staff, visitors and lesideats, the security of tte fiiciUty and an orderly flow ofnecessary movement
and activities. If unsure of any poIi<^ and procedure, ask for immediate assistance fimn a staff
member.

6. Harassment and discriminatton directed toward anyone based on sex, race, creed, color, national
or^ln or age are filial under federal and state laws and will not be tolerated in the work place.
Maintenance of a discriminatory work environment is also prohibited. Everyone has a duty to
observe the law and will be subject to removal for feUing to do so.

7. During the perfbrmance ofyour services you are reqxasible to the facility administrator, and by your
signature l^ow, agree to abide by all the rules, r^ulations, policies aitd procedures of the NH
Dqtartment of Corrections and the State of New Ham^hire.

8. In lieu of Contracted staff partidpating in the Corrections Academy, the Vendor thiou^ the
or his designees will a trainhig/brienlation fectlitated by the Vendor to

siq)plemeot ttus requirement and appropriate orient Vendor staff to the rules, regulations, pdides and
procedures of the Department ofCcvrections and the State of New Hampshire.

Roger P. Jobin, President

Name Sigg^yre Date
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Nil DEPARTMENT OF CORRECnONS
HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOtJNTABILiTY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contnctor identified in Section 13 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with die Healdi Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the
Standffids for Privacy and Security of faufividually Identifiable Health Informatioii, 4S CFR Parts 160 and
164. As defined herein, *^u8iness Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of
the Contractor that receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and
''Covered Badly" dudl nman the State ofNew Hanqishire, D^artment ofHealth and Human Services.

f 11 Definitions

a. *Desigpatcd Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set" in 45 CFR
Section 164301.

b. Thita Aggregation" diall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR S^on
164301.

c. "Heahfa Care Operation^ shall have the same meaning as the tenn "healdi care operations" in 45 CFR
Section 164301.

d. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-
191.

e. "Ittdividoal" diall have the g*'"* wwantng die term *iDdividuar* in 45 CFR Section 164301 and shall
include a person qualifies as a personal r^uesentative in accordance widi 45 CFR Section
16430t(g).

f. 'TrivacvRultf' fiiall mean die Standards for PrivaQ^ of Individually Identifiable Healdi Information at
45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, pronmlgated under HIPAA by the United States Dqmrtment of Healdi and
Human Services.

g. "Protected Health Information" fhait have (be same as (he term "protected health information"
in 45 CFR Section 164301, to the information created or received by Business Assodam fiom or
on behalfofCovered Entity.

h. Tteouired bv Law" have the same meaning as the. term "required tty law" in 45 CFR Section
164301.

L "Secretary" mean the Secretary of the Departmoit of Health and Human Services or his/her
designee.

j. "SeciuUv mean die Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health
Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments diercto.

k. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herdn shall have the meaning established undw 45
CEJC Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time.

(Ti Use and Dbdosure of Protected Healtfa Information

Stata^NHtDtpertmatiefComcttem •
DMstca^MeikalaadFanatteSirHca
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a. Business Associate diall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information (PHI)
except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the Agreement-
Further, the Business Associate sh^ not, and shall ensure that its directors, ofi&cers, employees and
agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violatton of
the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
(i) for the proper management and administntion of the Business Associate;
(fi) 88 required by law, pursuant to the terms set fordi in paragraph d. below; or
(iii) for data aggregation purposes for the health care (q)erations of Covered Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third party.
Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (Q reasonable assurances fiom the
third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or ibrtiier disclosed only as required by law
or for the purpose for whidi it was disclosed to the third party; and 00 an agreement fiom su^ third party
to immediitety notify Business Associate of ai^ breadies d the confidential]^ of the PHI, to the extent It
has obtained hsowledge of such breadL

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide services
under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose ai^ PHI in response to a request for disclosure on fiie basts
that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entify has an opportunify
to object to the disclosure and to sedc appropriate relief If Covered Entify objects to such disclosure, die
Buaness Associate refiain fixMn di^losing the PHI until Covered Entify has exhausted all remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entify has agreed to be bound by
additional restrictions on the uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PIH pursuant to the Privacy and
Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such additional restri^ions and shall not di^ose
PHI in violation of such additional restrictimis and shall abide by any additional secotify saf^uards.

ObHgatiops and Activities of Bariness Aasodate

a. Business Associate shall rqmrt to the designated Privacy Officer ofCovered Entify, in writing, any use
or disclosure of PHI in violation of die Agreement, including any security incident involving Covered
Entify data, of which it becomes aware, within two (2) business days of becoming aware of such
unaudiorized use or disclosure or security incident

b. Buriness Associate riiall use adndnistrative, idiysical and tedmical safeguards that reasonably and
aiquopiiately protect the confideotialify, integrity and availabilify of protected health information, in
dectronic or any other form, that it creates, receives, maintains or transmits under (his Agreement, in
accordance with the Privacy and Securify Rules, to prevent the use or disclosure of PHI other than as
permitted by the Agreement

c. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and records
relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received fiom, or created or received by fite Business Associate
on bdialf of Covered Entify to the Secretary for puiposes of determining Coveted Entity's compliance
with HIPAA and the Privacy and Securify Rule.

d. Business Associate riiall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to PHI
under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to die same lestrictioos and conditions on the use and
disclosure of PHI herein, including the duty to return or destroy die PHI as provided under
Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct durd party beneficiaiy oftfae
Contractor's business associate agirffmentff with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be

St8t9^NH,Dtpartautti9fCarrcetloua A(geSe/J
DMstan^MtdkalandFomuteSerrUet l>r^
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receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification fiom such
btianess associates who shall be governed by standard provision #13 of this Agreement for the purpose of
use and disclosure of protected health information.

e. Whhin live (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
dtall malm avail^e during norma! business hours at its offices all records, books, agreements, policies
and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to die Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling
Covered Entity to determine Business Associate's compliance with the tenns of the Agreement

f. Witlun ten (10) buusess <h^ of reoetving a written request from Covered Entity, Busisess Associate
shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered
Entity, to an Individual m order to meet the requireinents under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an amendment of
PHI or a recori about an individual contained in a Desired Record Set, the Business Associate riiall
mqirft Pin avallabie to Covered Entity for amendment and incorporate any such amendment to
enable Covered Entity to fhlfill its obligations under 45 CFR SectioD 164.526.

h. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to sudi disclosures
as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for an accounting of
disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR S^on 164.528.

i. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Ckivered Entity for a request for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Qithy such
information as Covered Entity may require to ftilfill its obligations to provide an accounting of
disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

j. In the event any individnal requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from the
Business Associate, foe Business Associate riiall within two (2) business days forward such request to
Covered Entity. Ck>verad Entity foall have foe responsibility of leqionding to forwarded requests.
However, if forwarding foe individual's request to Coveted Entity would cause Covered Entity or the
Business Associate to violate HIPAA and ̂  Privacy and Security Rule, foe Business Associate shall
instead respond to the individual's request as required by such taw and notify Covered Entity of sudi
response as soon as practicable.

k. Within ten (10) business days of termination of foe Agreement, for any reason, the Business Associate
shall return or destroy, as ̂ >e^ed by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or created or received by
the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and riiall not retain any copies or back-tq> tqtes
of sudi PHL If return or destruction b not feasible, or the disposition of foe mi has been otherwise
agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall continiie to extend the protections of foe Agreement,
to such PHI and limit further uses and dtsclosures of such PHI to foose purposes foat make the leturo or
destruction tnfeasible, for so long as Business Associate maintains such PHL If Covered Entity, in its sole
Hwmretlon, tequlies that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall
certify to Covered Entity that foe PHI has been destroyed.

f4> ObUgflttons of Covered Entity
a. Covered Entity dull noUfy Business Associate of any changes or liroUatton(s) in its Notice of Privacy
Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the extent that such
change or limitation may effect Business Associate's use or disclosure of PHL

Cogtrador Inlrlttc . .



b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of pennission
provided to Covered Entify by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by Busioess Associate
under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164^06 or 45 CFR Section 164^8.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or disclosure of
PHI that Covered Ent^ has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164^22, to the extent diat such
restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosnre of PHL

(5) Tenntnatton for Cause

In addition to standard provision 010 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate
the Agreement upon Coveted Entity's knowledge of a breach by Bu^ess Associate of the Business
Associate Agreement set forth herein as Esdublt L The Covered Entity may either immediately terminate
the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breadi within a
thneframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity detennmes that neither termination nor cure is
feasible. Covered Entity shall report the violation to the Secretary.

MtecePaneotts

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otiterwise defined herein, dial!
have tiie same meaning as ffiose tenns in tiie Privacy and Security Rule, as amended from time to
time. A reference in tite Agreement, as amended to include tiiis Exhibit I, to a Section in fee
Privacy and Security Rule means fee Section as in effect or as amended.

b. Amendment Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take sudi action as is necessary
to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary frn* Covered Entity to conq>!y wife
tite dumges in the requirements of HIPAA, fee Privacy and Security Rule, and qq)licable federal
and state law.

c. Data Ownersh^. The Business Associate ackno^edges that it has no ownership rights wife
respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf ofCovered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguify in fee Agreement shall be resolved to
permit Covered Entity to conq)ly wife HIPAA and fee IMvacy and Security Rule.

e. Segregation. If any tenn or condition of tins Exhibit I or the cqipUcation thereof to any
person(s) or drcumstance is hdd invalid, sudi invalidity shall not affect other tenns or
conditions which can be given effect without fee invalid tenn or condition; to feis end fee terms
and conditions of tiiis Exhibit I arededared severable.

t Survival. Provisions in tiiis Exhibit I regarding tiie use and disdosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of tiie protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, tiie defense and
indemnification provisions of section 3.d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive fee
termination of fee Agreement

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this HEALTH INSURANCE
PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABIUTV ACT BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT.

Sute^NH,Dtpartama^Cmttthm

CoBlractor taMa!*:,
DhUdn/Mi^ealaaJFcrefateSentees b2>\
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NH Department of Corrections
State of New Hamp^ire Agency Name

Office Of Public Guardian

1.^

ature of Authorizea Repi^entative Contracfbr Rq^re^tative Signature

Contractor Name

Helen E. Hanks

Authorized DOC Representative Name

Roger P. Jobin

Authorized Contractor Representative Name

Comrhissioner

Date
M

President

Authorized DOC Representative Title Authorized Contractor Representative Title

2-7/2-^
Date

S^at^ ofNH, D<partmeni efCorrections
Division of Medical and Forensic Services

Page 5 ofS
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NH DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

CXDNHDOmALnY OF INFORMATION AGREEMENT

I understand and agree that all enqiloyed by the oigamzation/agen^ I represent must abide by all
niles» r^ulations and laws of the State of New Hampshire and the NH D^Mtrtment ofConectioiis that
relate to the conSdentiality of records and aU other i^vileged infonnation.

I further agree that all en^loyed by or sdmsntracted thnm^ the organizatkm I represent are not to
discuss ai^ confidential or privileged infimnation with femily, fiiends or any persons not
professionaUy invdved with the NH Department of Corrections. If inmates or residents of the NH
Depaitmeiit of correction^ or, anyone outside of the NH Department of Corrections* employ
approaches any of the 07ganizBdon*8 employees or subcontractors and reqtiests information, the
stafiPemployegs of the organization I rqnesenl will immediate^ contact fiieir supervisor, notify tfie
NH Department of Corrections, and file an incident npott or statement rqwit wifii the appropriate
NH Dqnrtment of Corrections representative.

Any violation of the above may result in hnrnrttiate tennination of ai^ and all contractual obligations.

Roger P. Jobin. President
Name Signsfufy Date
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
DIVISION OP ADMINISTRATION
P.O. BOX 1806

CONCORD. NH 0330M806
603'271-66I0 PAX: 888-8084609

TDD ACC^: I-600>786-2884
wwwjaK^ov/nhdoc

HELENS. HANKS

COMMISSIONER

JONATHAN E. HANSON

DIRECTOR

r

PRISON RAPE ELIMINATION ACT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM

The Prison Rape EUminaticm Act (PR£A) of 2003 (with nnal Rule August 2012) is a federal law
established to address the dimination and prevention of sexual assault and sexual harassment within
cctrectional systems and detention fedlities. This Act applies to all conecthmal &ciltties, indudtng
prisons, jaUs, juvenile fecUhies and community corrections residential fecUities. PREA tnddents involve
the following conduct:
• Rerident-cn-resident sexual assault

• Reddent-ott-residem abusive sexual contact

•  Staff sexual misconduct

' • Staffsexual harassment, assault ofa resident

The act alroed to curb prison rape throu^ a **zero-tolerance** polt^, as well as dirou^ research and
infonnation gathering. The NH Department of Collections has zero tderance idating to die sexual
assaultArq;>e of offdideis and recognizes these offendets as crime victims. Due to this lecognhton and

to the federal Prison R(^ Elimination Act Cl^REA) of2003, the NH DepaiUucot of Corrections
extends the "zero tolerance** to the following:
• Contractoi/suboontractormisconduct

• Contractoi/subcontrectcr harassment, assault ofa resident

As a Contractor and/or Subcontractor ofthe NH Dqiartmept ofCorrections, I acknowledge diat I have been
ptrnnHM infnnmfltinn nn thftPricnn Rape Rliminflrion Act of2003 PubHc Law 108-79—ScDt. 4.2003 and
have bedi infmrned that as a Contractor and/or Subcontractor of the NH Dqiartmcot ofCorrections, sexual
fCTfht'i between Contractor and/or Subcontractor and offaMtos is pwAibiieil Sexual harassment or sexual
TPhavwAiw* involving an offender can be a violation of NH RSA 632-A:2,632-A3 and 632-A:4, Qwpter
632.A: Sexual Assauh and Related Offenses, and result in criminal prosecution.

As a Contractor and/br Subcontractor ofthe NH Dqiartment of Corrections, I understand that 1 shall inform
all enqiloyees ofthe Contractor and/or Subcontractor to adhere to all policies concerning PREA, RSA 632-
A:2. RSA 632-A:3, RSA 632-A:4 and departmental policies including NHDOC Administfative Rules.
Conduct and Confidentiatiiv Informaiion regarding my conduct, rqiorticg of inddents and treatment of
those under the s\:9iervl8lon of the NH Department of Conections. (Ref. RSA Charter 632-A, and
Administrative Rules, Rules of Conduct for Persons Provi^ng Contract Services, Confidentiality of
Information Agreement).

Name (print): Roger P. Jobin. President Date: 4/^7/2-^
^..R-iame of Contract Slgnatoiy)

(Sfflteture of Contract Signof Contract Signatory
Signature:

)

PraaoUng PBbSc Safctj wUb Respect, PreCesilesalbiQ, Dedtatloa aod Ceoraae es Ose Team

f^7l-23



Office of Public Guardian
2 Pillsbury Street, Suite 400

Concord, NH 03301

603-224-8041

Mission Statement

Our goal is to protect the legal and human rights and civil liberties of each individual we serve. Our

professional guardians exercise the highest ethical standards in decision-making on behalf of our clients.

Purpose

The Office of Public Guardian is a private non-profit corporation organized in 1979 to provide guardianship
and advocacy services to citizens of New Hampshire.

The Office of Public Guardian provides services throughout the state of New Hampshire to legally
incapacitated adults, including those who may be challenged by developmental disabilities, mental illness,
dementia or traumatic brain injury. Our professional staff provides depth of experience and a wide array
of services to clients on a fee for services basis and to qualified indigent clients through a contract with
the State of New Hampshire.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of

Office of Public Guardian, Inc.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Office of Public Guardian, Inc.
(a nonprofit entity), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30,2021 and 2020, and
the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibilityfor the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suiTicient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Office of Public Guardian, Inc. as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the changes in its



net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

We were not engaged to audit the statements of financial position of the agency funds of the Office
of Public Guardian, Inc. Those funds, which are more fully described in Note 9 to the financial statements,
were approximately $35,069,668 at June 30, 2021 and $34,557,341 at June 30, 2020, as represented by
management.

Manchester, New Hampshire
April 14, 2022



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2021 and 2020

ASSETS

2021 2020

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for uncollectible

receivables of $30,000 in 2021 and 2020

Contracts receivable

S  1,039,763 $ 959,717

95,734

226,683
35,151

134,215
171,521

36,267

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,397,331 1,301,720

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

Condominium Unit 1,181,782 1,181,782

Office furniture and equipment 142,105 142,105
Computer equipment 185,508 185,508

1,509,395 1,509,395

Less accumulated depreciation 684,047 628,010

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET 825,348 881.385

OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS:

Restricted cash 3,963 19,552

Investments-restricted 191,965 139,587

Software, net of accumulated amortization orS143,527 in 2021 and 2020 - -

TOTAL OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS 195,928 159.139

TOTAL ASSETS $ 2,418,607 $ 2.342.244

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable $  55,966 $  27,558

Accrued liabilities:

Accrued payroll 64373 127,477

Accrued vacation 250,692 234,408

Other 67,567 • 49,151

Current portion oflong-tenn liabilities 25,109 23,947

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 463,707 462.541

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:

Mortgage notes payable, less current portion or$23,462 in 2021 and $22,376 in 2020 446,648 470,120

Notes payable, less current portion of $1,647 in 2021 andSl,571 in 2020 31,361 33,008

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 478,009 503,128

TOTAL LIABILITIES 941,716 965,669

NET ASSETS:

Without donor restrictions:

Undesignated
With donor restrictions:

Purpose restrictions
Endowment funds

TOTAL NET ASSETS

1,280,963

95,928
100,000

1,476,891

1,217,436

59,139
100,000

1,376,575

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 2,418,607 $ 2,342,244

See notes fa financial statements
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS:

SUPPORT AND REVENUE:

Fees and grants from governmental agencies
Other fees

Contributions

Investment return, net

Other income

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

2021

2,358,272

1,792

683

4,804,018

2020

$ 2,443,271 $ 2,009,871
2,437,864

5,000

2,603

328

4,455,666

EXPENSES:

Program expense

Management and General Expenses
TOTAL EXPENSES

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS:

Investment return, net

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - July I

NET ASSETS - June 30

3,312,762

1,427,729

4,740,491

63,527

36.789

36,789

100,316

1,376,575

3,107,532

1,230,450

4,337,982

117,684

5,453

5,453

123,137

1,253.438

$  1,476,891 $ 1.376,575

See notes tofinancial statements
4



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Program

Services

Supporting Services

Management

and

General

Total

Supporting
Services

Total

Expenses

SALARJES AND RELATED EXPENSES:

Salaries

Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

2,359,210

.392,643
187,878

2.939.731

948,712

157.894

75,551

1,182,157

948,712

157,894

75,551

1,182,157

3,307,922

550,537

263,429

4,121,888

OTHER EXPENSES:

Occupancy 32,453 13,050 13,050 45,503

Professional services 20,985 8,439 8,439 29,424

Computer and software expenses 64,249 25,837 25,837 90,086

Staff development 8,290 3,334 3,334 11,624

Office expenses 190.850 76,747 76,747 267,597

Travel 22,870 - 22,870

Insurance 39,731 39,731 39,731

Depreciation and amortization 56,037 56,037 56,037

Bad debts 8,993 8,993 8,993

Mortgage interest 17,480 7,029 7,029 24,509

Other 15,854 6,375 6,375 22,229

Total $ 3.312,762 $  1,427,729 $  1,427,729 S 4,740,491

See notes to financial statements
5



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the Year Ended June 30,2020

Program

Services

Supporting Services

Management Total

and Supporting Total

General Services Expenses

SALARIES AND RELATED EXPENSES:

Salaries

Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

2,214,018

374,491

169,035

2,757,544

787,633

133,224
60,134

980,991

787,633

133,224

60,134

980,991

3,001,651

507,715
229,169

3,738,535

OTHER EXPENSES:

Occupancy 31,961 11,370 11,370 43,331

Professional services 27,532 9,795 9,795 37,327

Computer and sofhvare expenses 62,440 22,214 22,214 84,654

StalT development 12,945 4,605 4,605 17,550

Office expenses 117,792 41,904 41,904 159,696

Travel 60,695 - 60,695

Insurance 31,383 31,383 31,383

Depreciation and amortization 58,828 58,828 58,828

Bad debts 56,332 56,332 56,332

Mortgage interest 18,893 6,721 6,721 25,614

Other 17,730 6,307 6,307 24,037

Total $ 3.107,532 $  1,230,450 $  1,230,450 $ 4,337,982

See notes tofinancial statements
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended June 30,2021 and 2020

2021 2020

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Cash received from clients and third-party payers $ 2,388,443 $ 2,416,682

Cash received from governmental agencies 2,388,109 1,994,827

Interest and dividends 1,792 2,603

Cash paid to employees (3,354,742) (2,949,531)

Cash paid to suppliers (1.319.599) (1,236,240)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 104,003 228.341

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (25.756)

Purchase of investments (26,318) (846)

Realized gains on investments 6,779 3,877

Cash received from interest and dividends 3,950 2,702

Net Cash Used for Investing Activities (15,589) (20,023)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Payments on mortgages and notes (23.957) (22.853)

Net Cash Used for Financing Activities (23.957) (22,853)

Net Increase in Cash 64,457 185,465

Cash, Beginning of Year 979,269 793,804

Cash, End of Year 5  1,043,726 S  979.269

Supplemental Data:

Interest paid $  24,509 $  25,614

Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 26,060 (1.126)

$  50,569 S  24,488

See notes tofinancial statements
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Years Ended June 30,2021 and 2020

NOTE l-SUMMARV OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Purpose

The Office of Public Guardian, Inc. (the "Entity") was incorporated as a non-profit organization on
July 14, 1983. The Entity was established to provide guardianship, co-guardianship and conservatorship
services for individuals found to be legally incapacitated pursuant to New Hampshire State law
(RSA 464-A) and other applicable statutes. Protective services other than guardianship may include, but
are not limited to, power of attorney, client representative, or services as a representative or protective
payee.

Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the Office of Public Guardian, Inc. conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America as applicable to non-profit organizations, except as indicated
hereafter. The following is a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting and have been
prepared to focus on the Organization as a whole and to present balances and transactions according to
the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject
to donor or certain grantor restrictions. These net assets may be used at the discretion of management and
the Entity's Board of Directors.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor or certain grantor-imposed restrictions.
Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of
time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature,
where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are
released when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated
purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

Recognition of Contributions and Donor Restrictions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Entity that is, in substance,
unconditional. The Entity reports contributions restricted by donors as increases in net assets without
donor restrictions if the restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated time restriction end or purpose
restriction is accomplished) in the reporting period in which the revenue is recognized. All other donor
restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the
nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to
net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from
restrictions.

8



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30,2021 and 2020

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and other cash accounts with a maturity of 90 days or
less. For purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:

2021 2020

As presented on the Statements of Financial Position:
Cash $ 1,039,763 $ 959,717

Cash, restricted 3,963 19,552
S 1.043.726 $ 979.269

Significant Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Entity*s cash balances exceed amounts insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).
Deposits held by the bank at June 30, 2021 include cash of approximately $566,214 which is not covered
by depository insurance. As of June 30,2020, the uninsured cash balance was $617,507.

Restricted Cash and Investments

Restricted cash and investments consist of cash and investments for the Graupner Endowment Fund, a
donor restricted contribution.

Investments

Investments, consisting of equity and fixed income mutual funds, are reported at their fair values in the
statements of financial position. Net investment retum/(loss) is reported in the statements of activities and
consists of interest income, realized and unrealized gains and losses, less external investment expenses.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. The Entity's policy is to capitalize expenditures for major
improvements and to charge operations currently for expenditures which do not extend the lives of related
assets. The provision for depreciation is determined by the straight-line method at rates intended to
depreciate or amortize the cost of related assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Years

Equipment 5-10
Furniture 5-10

Buildings 40

Depreciation expense was $56,037 and $58,828 for the years ended June 30,2021 and 2020, respectively.

Bad Debts

The Entity uses the reserve method for accounting for bad debts. For the years ended June 30, 2021 and
2020, the Entity reserved $30,000 as an allowance for uncollectible receivables. Management estimated
these allowances by evaluating the probability of collection on a per account basis.



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30,2021 and 2020

Accrued Vacation

Full time employees accrue Paid Time Off (FTC) during their first year of employment at a rate of 9.38
hours per completed month of service. Af^er the first year of service employees are credited with 150 to
262.5 hours of FTC for that year on Januaiy 1st, based on each employee's years of service. Employees
may carry over 37.5 to 150 hours of unused FTC into each calendar year based on their years of service.
Any accrued, but unused FTO is payable to the employee upon separation from employment and has been
recorded as a liability at year end.

Income Taxes

The Entity is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(cX3) of the Internal Revenue Code
and is also exempt from State of New Hampshire income taxes and, therefore, has made no provision for
Federal or State income taxes. In addition, the Entity has been determined by the Internal Revenue
Service not to be a "Private Foundation" within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Code. The Entity is
annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990) with the IRS.
FASB Accounting Standards (Modification Topic 740 entitled Accounting for Income Taxes requires the
Entity to report uncertain tax positions for financial reporting purposes. The Entity had no uncertain tax
positions as of June 30, 2021 and, accordingly does not have any unrecognized tax benefits that need to
be recognized or disclosed in the financial statements.

Fair Value ofFinancial Instruments

(Mash and equivalents, accounts receivable, contracts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued expenses
are carried in the financial statements at amounts which approximate fair value due to the inherently
short-term nature of the transactions. The fair values determined for financial instruments are estimates,

which for certain accounts may differ significantly from the amounts that could be realized upon
immediate liquidation.

Revenue Recognition

The Entity recognizes contributions, donations, and other miscellaneous income when cash is received.
Interest income is recognized monthly as accrued. The Entity recognizes revenue from contracts with
customers in the form of guardianship services provided to individuals. Services provided to individuals
are charged to governmental contracts when eligible, and for those not eligible, charged as "private pay."

The Entity has revenue derived from governmental contracts for guardianship services provided, which
are based upon certain performance requirements. Revenue from governmental contracts is recognized
when the Entity has met the performance requirements specified by contract provisions. For governmental
contracts, services are billed on a monthly basis in arrears.

-Private pay guardianship services are billed in one of three methods: hourly for services related to
estate/financial matters and monthly flat rate for guardianship over person; per diem for court appointed
guardianship over person; and on a percentage basis for trusts and guardianship services of a minor. Per
diem services are billed in advance, while hourly, flat rate and percentage-based services are billed after
services have been provided: The Entity recognizes revenue for private pay services at the point in time
when customers are billed. Receivables may be recorded in advance of services provided.
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30,2021 and 2020

Functional Allocation ofExpenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the
statements of activities. The statements of functional expenses present the natural classification detail of
expenses by function.

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than one
program or supporting function. Accordingly, certain indirect costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited, based primarily on percentage allocations calculated, based
on hours worked (time and effort). The expenses that are allocated include employee benefits, payroll
taxes, occupancy, professional services, computer and sofhvare expense, office expense, mortgage
interest, and other miscellaneous expenses.

Pervasiveness ofEstimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Change in Accounting Principle

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued new guidance that created Topic 606, Revenue
from Contracts with Customers, in the Accounting Standards Codification (ASC). Topic 606 supersedes
the revenue recognition requirements in FASB ASC 605, Revenue Recognition, and requires the
recognition of revenue when promised goods or services are transferred to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
The new guidance also added Subtopic 340-40, Other Assets and Deferred Costs-Contracts with
Customers, to the ASC to require the deferral of incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a
customer. Collectively, we refer to the new Topic 606 and Subtopic 340-40 as the "new guidance."

The Entity adopted the requirements of the new guidance as of July 1, 2020, utilizing the modified
retrospective method of transition. The new guidance was applied using the practical expedient provided
in Topic 606 that allows the guidance to be applied only to contracts that were not complete as of July 1,
2020. Adoption of the new guidance resulted in changes to our accounting policies for revenue
recognition, trade receivables, contract costs, contract liabilities, and deferred costs. However,
management estimates that the effect of these changes on the amounts that would have been reported
under the former guidance to be immaterial.

NOTE 2-ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE

The Entity's primary source of support are fees and grants received from the State of New Hampshire
totaling $2,443,271 (51% total revenue), and $2,009,871 (45% total revenue) for the years ended June 30,
2021 and 2020, respectively. Revenue is recognized as earned under the terms of the contract based on
units and level of services provided. Other support originates as charges for private services, interest, and
other income. The contract has been renewed through the fiscal year ended June 30,2022.

II



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30,2021 and 2020

NOTE 3-LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The Entity regularly monitors the availability of resources required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments. Cash reserves in excess of daily operational needs are invested in money
market and savings accounts to maximize investment return while maintaining safety and liquidity.

The following table reflects the Entity's financial assets as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, reduced by
amounts that are not available to meet general expenditures within one year of the statement of financial
position date because of donor restrictions.

Financial assets available for general expenditure, reduced by donor or other restrictions limiting their
use, within one year of the balance sheet date, comprise the following:

2021 2020

Cash $ 1,043,726 $  979,269

Investments 191,965 139,587

Accounts receivable 95,734 134,215

Contracts receivable 226,683 171.521

Total Financial Assets 1,558,108 1,424,592

Less:

Net assets with donor restrictions (195,928) (159,139)

Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash Needs

for General Expenditures Within One Year $  1,362,180 $  1,265,453

NOTE 4-INVESTMENTS

Fair Value Measurements

The Entity reports under the Fair Value Measurements pronouncements of the FASB Accounting
Standards Codification (FASB ASC 820-10), which establishes a framework for measuring fair value.
That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs of valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs
(level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below.

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or
liabilities in active markets that the Entity has the ability to access at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation include:

•  Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
•  Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active;
•  Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;
•  Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by

correlation or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable for
substantially the full term of the asset or liability.
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement.

In some cases, the inputs uised to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorized
within different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair value measurement is
categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is
significant to the entire measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to entire
measurement requires judgment, taking into account factors specific to the asset or liability. The
categorization of an asset within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the asset and
does not necessarily correspond to our assessment of the quality, risk, or liquidity profile of the asset or
liability.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.

Equity andfixed income mutualfurvis: Valued at the closing price reported on the active market on which
the individual securities are traded.

The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Entity's assets measured at fair
value on a recurring basis, as of June 30,2021 and 2020:

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30,2021

Level 1 Level 2 I^vel 3 Total

Equity mututal funds $ 141,438 $ 141,438

Fixed income mututal funds 50,527 50,527

Total Assets at Fair Value S 191,965 $  - $ - S 191,965

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30.2020

Level I Level 2 Level 3 Total

Equity mututal funds $ 97,320 s 97,320

Fixed income mututal fimds 42,267 .  42,267

Total Assets at Fair Value $ 139,587 $  - $ - s 139,587

NOTE 5-ENDOWMENTS

The Board of Directors of the Entity has interpreted the State Prudent Management of Institutional Funds
Act (SPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the
donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. Because of this
interpretation, the Entity classifies the original value of the gift as donor restricted net assets which are
permanently restricted. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fiind is classified as
donor restricted net assets until approved for expenditure when it is reclassified to unrestricted net assets.
The Entity appropriates amounts for expenditure in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence
prescribed by SPMIFA. In accordance with SPMIFA, the Entity considers the following factors in
making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: (1) duration and
preservation of the endowment funds; (2) the purposes of the Entity and the endowment fund; (3) general
economic conditions; (4) effect of inflation and deflation; (5) the expected total return from income and
the appreciation of investments; (6) other resources of the Entity; and (7) the investment policy of the
Entity.
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

The Entity has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to provide a
predictable stream of income of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to
maintain the purchasing power of those endowment assets over the long-term. Endowment assets include
those assets of donor-restricted funds that the Entity must hold in perpetuity or for donor-specified
periods. Under this policy, as approved by the Board of Directors, the endowment assets are invested in a
manner that is intended to achieve an after-cost total real rate of return, including investment income as
well as capital appreciation, which exceeds the annual distribution with acceptable levels of risk. The
Entity expects its endowment assets, over time, to produce an average return of approximately 10%
annually. Actual returns in any given year may vary from this amount.

To satisfy its long-term rate of return objectives, the Entity relies on a total return strategy in which
investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation and current yield. The Entity targets a
diversified asset allocation which includes equity and debt securities. This is intended to result in a
consistent inflation-protection rate of return that has enough liquidity to make an annual distribution of
approximately $5,000 on average while growing the fund, if possible.

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds
may fall below the level that the donor or SPMIFA requires the Entity to retain as a fund of perpetual
duration.

The following tabulation summarizes the relationship between carrying values and market values of
investment assets for the years ending June 30,2021 and 2020:

For the year ended June 30, 2021:
Purpose
Restricted

Endowment

Funds Total

Donor restricted net assets as of

July 1.2020
Investment return:

Investment income, net of fees

Net ̂preciation

Donor restricted net assets as of June 30,2021

59,139

10,729
26,060

95,928

100,000

100,000

159,139

10,729
26,060

195,928

For the year ended June 30,2020:
Purpose
Restricted

Endowment

Funds Total

Donor restricted net assets as of

July 1,2019
Investment return:

Investment income, net of fees

Net depreciation

Donor restricted net assets as of June 30,2020

$  53,686

6,579
(1.126)

59,139

100,000

100,000

153,686

6,579
(1.126)

159,139
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30,2021 and 2020

NOTE 6-LONG-TERM DEBT

At June 30,2021 and 2020, mortgage and notes payable consists of the following:

$584,000 mortgage note payable with bank, secured by
property, payable in monthly installments of interest
and principal reduction of $3,774, through October 2035,
with interest at 4.75% per annum through November 2025.
Subsequent interwt will be 2.25% plus the Ten Year Federal
Home Loan Bank Index Rate.

2021 2020

$  470,110 $ 492,496

$41,000 note payable with bank, secured by all assets, payable
in monthly installments of interest and principal of $1,589
through October 2035, with interest at 4.75% per annum
through November 2025. Subsequent interest will be 2.25%
plus the Ten Year Home Loan Bank Index Rate.

Less current portion

33,008

503,118
25.109

34.579

527,075
23.947

$  478,009 $ 503,128

Debt service requirements are as follows:

Year

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

Thereafter

Amount

$  25,109

26,329

27,607

28,947

30,590

364,536

$  503.118

NOTE 7-REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The following table provides information about significant balances on contracts with customers for the
prior three years:

Receivables

Contract

Assets

Contract

Liabilities

June 30,2021 $ 349.763 S $

June 30,2020 $ 330,081 $ $

June 30,2019 $ 341.595 $ $
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30,2021 and 2020

NOTE 8-RETIREMENT PLAN

The Entity has a tax deferred annuity plan under Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code for all full-
time employees. An employee becomes eligible to participate at the commencement of employment and
is vested when an initial contribution is made. Employer contributions are made on each participant's
behalf; contribution rates were 6% and 5% of gross wages for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. Tlie Entity contributed $141,742 and $101,955 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively, to the plan.

NOTE 9-AGENCY FUNDS

The Entity maintains guardian accounts on behalf of the wards of the State of New Hampshire. These
funds amounted to approximately $35,069,668 and $34,557,341 as of June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. The assets and related obligations have not been reflected on the Statements of Financial
Position at June 30,2021 or 2020.

NOTE 10-SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through April 14, 2022, which is the date the financial statements
were available to be issued.
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN

Key Personnel List
7/1/23-6^0/26

Linda Million. JD, NMG E.xccutivc Dirccior S 133.581.80 2.34% S 3.125.8!

Marj" Michaud. MSW, NMG director of Guardianship Services s 99.7I5.6'4 2.34% s 2,333.35

'I'racy Culbcrson, ILs<j. NCG Dirccior of lA'gal Scrvicis S- 131.170.96 2,34% s 3.069.40

Diani; Aikcns Director of Fiduciaiy SerN-iccs s 77.250.00 2.34% s 1,807.65

Andrea Si-sson. CPA Dirccior of rinanec s 97.525.89 2.34% s 2.282.1!



UNDA MALLON, ESQUIRE
Office of Public Guardian

2 Pill^ury St, Suite 400
concord NH 03301

(603) 224-8041
lmallon@opgnh.org

EDUCATION: Franklin Pierce Law Center. Concord, New Hampshire
Juris Doctor, 1982
Admission to New Hampshire Bar, 1982

Trinttv College, Hartford, Connecticut
B.A., American Studies, 1977

PROFESSIONAL

EXPERIENCE: OFFICE OF PUBUC GUARDIAN

Concord, New Hampshire

Executive Director, 1998-Present
Deputy Director, 1985-1998
Public Guardian, 1984-1985

• Responsible for directing a non-profit organization certified by
the NH Supreme Court to provide public guardianship
throughout the Sate of NH to qualified indigent citizens
receiving services through the Department of Health and
Human Services and Department of Corrections

• Responsible for overseeing the provision of private
guardianship and other fiduciary services to individuals
statewide

• Provide supervidon, consultation and training to twenty-six
staff members including attorneys, medical profesaonals and
social workers

• Develop organizational policies and procedures
• Provide education, training and other consultative services on

a state, regional and national basis



NEW ENGLAND NON-PROFIT

HOUSING CORPORATION

Concord/ New Hampshire
Staff Attorney, 1982-1984

NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE

INSTITUTIONAL LAW PROJECT

Concord, New Hamp^ire
Law Qerk, 1981-1982

• Statewide program concerned with matters affecting the
rights of institudonaHzed and disabled persons in the areas
of mental health, developmental disabilities, juvenile and
prison law.

• Focus on pursuing remedies which enabled these indMduats
to live in the least restrictive, most integrated community
setting pos^bie.

CERTIFICATIONS: Center for Guardianship Certification
• Certified Master Guardian

• Certified Proctor for CGC exams

MEMBERSHIPS: National Guardianship Association
• Ethics Committee; Rrst Responder
• Nominating Committee

New Hampshire Bar Association
• Elder Law, Estate Planning and Probate Section

Probate Court Task Force on Professional Guardians

Long Term Care Ombudsman Advisory Committee

Incapacitated Adult Fatality Review Committee

Foundation for Healthy Communities
• Healthcare Decisions Coalition



Tracy M. Culberson. Esq.

Experience 2015-CurTBnt Office of Pubiic Guardian

Staff Attorney / National Certified Guardian
• Provide legal counsel as necessary to assist In the provision of guardianship

services to incapacitated cOents throughout New Hampshire.
• Provide guardianship services to incapacitated adults

2011 - Current Cuiberson Legal Servfces of New Hampshire, PLLC

Owner / Solo Practitioner

■  Legal services to include prot)ate litigation, elder law and estate planning, and
Nursing Home Abuse Litigation

2006-2011 Office of the New Hampshire Aftomey General, Concord NH

Assistant Attorney General

• Head of the Bder Abuse and Financial E^loitation Unit

• Prosecuted cases of homicide, abuse, neglect, and financial exploitation of
elderty and incapacitated adults in Superior. DistricL end Probate Courts
throughout the Stale of New Hampshire. Notable prosecutions include:

• Trained medical professionals, first responders, Judges, court personnel,
emergency service providefs, and adult protection workers in identi^ng signs
and symptoms of elder abuse, neglect, self-negtecl and exploitatfon, mandatory
reporting, investigation techniques and evidence preservation.

• Drafted and filed State's response to defendant's appeal to Supreme Court
■ Chairman of the Incapacitated Adult Fatality Review Commatee.

2005-2006 Office of the Hillsborough County Attorney. Manchester NH

Assistant County Attorney

- Represented the State and Hillsborough County in Juvenile, District and
Superior Courts.

■ Prosecution of rnisdemearx)rarulfeIony-tevel crimes.

• Presentation of felony cases to the grand jury for indictment

Co-Director of Communities Against Senior Exploitation (CASE) Partnership. .

1992-2005 Goffatown f^olice Department, GoffstownNH
Potlce Officer / Prosecutor

• Certified New Hampshire Police Officer

•  Instructed and trained poEoe officers in the areas of juvenile law, criminal and
motor vehicle taw enforcement and adjudication, s^rch and seizure, use of
force, constitutionailaw, and the taws of arrest

■ Drafted, reviewed, and executed search and arrest warrants.

• Training and experience In the investigation of felonies and serious
misdemeanors to include homicide, sexual assauft, child neglec* and abuse,
robbery, burglary, arson, fraud, internet crimes and financial e)q)lcMion.



2005-2007 Plymouth State University, Plymouth, NH

AcQunct Faculty

•  Instructor vvfthln the Department of Crimii^Ju^

Spectftc instruction in courses to include 'Criminal Adjudication'. The
Constitution and the Criminal Justice ProtocoT and 'Domestic Violenoe and
Juvenile Justice'.

2005-Current New Hampshire Police Standards and Training Coundt, Concord NH

Guest Lecturer

•  Instructor for in-service training of poSce officers attending "Basic PoGce
PfOsecutDr" Course.

• Lectured on topics to include The Rules of Evidence", "Case Preparation and
Analysis' and "EU^ Atruse and Financial Exptoltation Investigation'.

• FadGtator of mock DWl trials.

Education

2004 Massachusetts School of Law

■ Juris Doctor Degree

North Andover. MA

Certifications and

Pitifessiofial

Organization

MonbersMps

1992 Saint AnsetmCoOege GofEstown,NH
■ Bachelor of Arts Degree

" Completion of requirements for CriminalJustice in 1992
Completion of requiTOTients for English in 1998

200B-Cu/7enf - Chair of Incapacitated Adult Fatality Review Committee

2006-Ci/nBnf - Co-Chairperson of Law Enforcement Sut)-Committee of the Elder
Abuse Advisory CouncH

2006-Cunent-PandiMemher o^Long-Term Care Safdy Net Committee

2004 - Member of the Massachusetts Bar Association BA-159542
2004-Member of the New Hampshire Bar Association BA-16430

2005 - Justice of the Peace - New Hampshire

■  1992-Certified New Hampshire Police Officer

Contiraring Legal

Education
Trial Advocacy I - National OfeWcf Attorney's Assodatiorr. Trial Advocacy II -
National District Attome/s Assodatiorr. Prosecuting Cases of Elder Abuse -
National Distrid Attorney's Association: Advanced Cross Examlnatkaa* Nuts and
Bolts of Criminal Law. Access to Pubfic Records: New Hampshire Bar
Association Practical SklDs Course: Communities Against Senior ExpJdtation
(CASE) Partnership: NH Attaney GeneraTs Child Abuse and Domestic Violence
Conference.



other

■  Board of Directors: Honor FBght New England

■  Board of Directors for Suncook Youth Soccer

•  Conversational French; Percussionist



Mary K. Michaud

EDUCATION Master of Sodal Work. 1990

State University of New York at Albany, Albany, NY

NH UCSW, 1996 (currently on Inactive status)

BJL Psychology.. 1986

St Anselm College, Manchester, NH

PROFESSIONAL

EXPERIENCE

Office of Public Guardian. 1998-present

Concord, NH

Director of Guardianship Services. July 2017>Dresent

•  Provide oversight and management of guardian department, directly
supervising 18 professional guardians, including 2 team leaders.

•  Serve as a member of the management team, participating in

organizational decisions.

•  Responsible for making caseload assignments to ensure manageable
caseload size and composition.

•  In conjunction with Executive Director and Associate Director, responsible
for hiring new guardians. Prowde orientation and training for new
guardians and oversee ongoing training for all guardians.

•  Serve as primary guardian for several individuals.

Guardian Supervisor. 2014-2017

•  Provide direct supervision, consultation and performance oversight for
professional guardian staff.

•  Provide orientation and training for new guardians.

•  Serve as primary guardian for several Individuals.

Staff Guardian. 1998-Dresent

•  Provide advocacy and informed decision making for individuals
deemed incapacitated by the NH Probate Court due to intellectual
disability, mental illness, traumatic brain injury and/or dementia.

•  Collaborate with families, medical providers, nursing homes, area
agencies, immunity mental health centers, state psychiatric hospital,
and other inpatient, residential and outpatient providers to ensure
best possible outcomes for individuals in least restrictive settings.



Genesis Behavioral Health (fka Genesis-The Counseling Grouol, 1996-1998

Laconia, NH

Case Management Coordinator. 1997-1998

•  Provided administrative and clinical oversight of Community

Support Program clinical case management and independent
living services for individuals with serious and persistent mental

illness.

ainical Case Manager. 1996-1997

•  Provided primary therapy and case management services for

adults with serious and persistent mental illness.

•  Performed Emergency Services clinical evaluations

Gatewav Center for Human Development Brunswick. GA. 1995-1996

Interim Program Manager

• Managed psychosocial day treatment program for adults with
mental illness during agency search for permanent manager.

Rensselaer County Department of Mental Health. 1990-1995

Troy, NY

Intensive Case Manager. 1991-1995

Provided outreach and support for adults with serious and
persistent mental illness at risk for homelessness,
incarceration or recurring psychiatric hospltallzation.

Mental Health Social Worker. 1990-1991

Responsible for prinoary therapy and case management
services for adults with mental illness.



ANDREA L. SISSON, CPA
Office of Public Guardian

2 PUlsbury St, Suite 400
Concord, NH 03301

(603)224-8041

SUMMARY;

•  18 years of experience with local CPA firms woricing wth a wide range of clients
including small service businesses, non-profit organizations and multi-million dollar
manufacturing companies.

• Co-founded and managed local payroll service bureau.
• Proficient in various types of tax return preparation, all areas of accounting, bookkeeping

and payroll.
• Designed and implemented customized bookkeeping systems for clients.
• Hired, trained and supervised staff at various levels.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:

Office of Public Guardian Concord, New Hampshire
Business Manager 10/2007-Present
• Responsible for all financial aspects of the organization including daily

accounting woric, preparation of financial statements, preparation of payroll for 27
person staf^ creation of budgets

• Responsible for supervision of all admimstrative staff and oversight of all
adniinistrative functions of the entity

• Assist in the development of organizational policies and procedures as a member
of the management team

Peter C. Brankman and Company, P.C. Concord, New Hampshire
Senior Staff Accountant/Manager 10/2004 -10/2007
• Managed individual tax portion of practice (400-500 returns); controlled woric

flow, supervised staff; prepared returns in a fest-paced deadline driven
environment

• Designed and implemented paperless individual tax processing system. '
•  Perform compilations, reviews and audits of various for profit and non-profit

client financial statements.

• Designed and implemented bookkeeping systems for clients.
• Trained and supervised staff on all types of engagements.



D'Agnese, Robinson and Company/Stephen C Robinson and Company, /McLarney
and Company (Same finn vaiious owners) Concord, New Hampshire
Staff Accountant/Senior Staff Accountant/Manager 9/1989 - 6/2004
• Assisted and advised clients widi various accounting and management functions.
•  Installed and set accounting software packages; train client personnel.
• Managed all bookkeeping clients.
• Designed and implemented accounting and internal control procedures.
• Managed work flow through busy tax seasons
• Hired, trained and supervised staff.

EDUCATION:

• BS in Accoimting,Bentley College May 1989
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Proven, innovative and detail-oriented professional with experience in
probate matters, compliahce, training, state.aod federal benefits,
ernpioyee development and supervision. Bachelor's degree in Human
Resources.

KEY QUALIFICATIONS

?m.5.

fW a

3im!xLJs:S£,^

0  CONSISTENTLY THINKS CREATIVELY IN DEVELOPING TRAINING AND
PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT PROGRAMS AND RESOURCES

0 MENTORING AND SUPERVISING TEAM MEMBERS, ENSURING
employees FEEL VALUED,>SUPPORTED, AND RESPECTED IN THE
WORKPUCE

O  EXCELLENT INTERPERSONAL AND EMOTIONAL INTELLIGENCE SKILLS
0  ABILITY TO BUILD STRONG'RELATIONSHIPS AND BROAD:NE"nWORKS

WITH KEY PARTNERS AND STAKEHOLDERS
6  CONSIDERABLE PROBLEM-SOLVING SKILLS TO ACHIEVE BEST

OUTCOMESTOR EMPLOYEES AND THE ORGANIZATION
0 ABILITY TO EVALUATE WORKPLACE iSSUES AND CONFLICTS AND

BRINGS THEM TO RESOLUTION
0

CREATING'EMPLOYEEIINITIATIVES
0  COMMUNICATES EFFECTIVELY, NEGOTIATES CONFLICT AND

WITH INITIAL OBJECTIVES

EXPERIENCE

Probate Paralegal
Office of Public Guardian (OPG)
October 2019- Present

O

Court Intake Coordinator
0 Advises Property Team and Fiduciary Supervisors
O  Participates in all Legal, Fiduciary & Property Meetings
0  Develops and manages and advises on SSA & AAU appeals. Cases often

resolved without a hearing
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0 Mentors, collaborates and provides direct support to staff in decision

making process

0  Identifies complex problems and creates solutions to meet desired
outcomes

O Maintains professional relationships and communicates with

government-officials and legal representatives-

0  Effectively manages multiple demands and competing priorities

0 Works independently and manages risks without excessive supervision

0 Demonstrates commitment to clients and values of organization
0  In depth knowledge of the NH Court Probate system

0  In depth knowledge of State & Federal benefits, appeals, family law,
landlord-tenant, small claims actions and highly complex litigation

0 Manages entire estate admihisiration caseload oh behalf of the office

Parategal/Noh-Attorney Disability Representative
Wyskiel, 6oc, TillinghastSt Bolduc, P.A. (WBTB)

January 2014- October 2019

0  Facilitated coaching and mentoring to other peers and supports their
professional development, as well as taught learning modules and
presents same to other members of the department

0  Conducted new hire interviews and gathers information during the dn-
boarding process . .

0  Participated in performance rrianagement and time management
review of other employees, including root cause problem solving

sessions

0 Conducts trainings for department and assesses training needs
0  Provided paralegal and non-attorney representative support to lead

attorneys

p Mentors claimants throughout the social security disability process
0  Prepares and files online applications to appeals at local, state and

federal levels, as well as medical summary and brief preparation .

0  Extensive interaction with state examiners, judges and attorneys ^

0  Communicates and collaborates with government officials; physician
offices and supervisors

0  Conducts in-depth telephone interviews and thoroughly documents the
file

0

0  Participates in settlement discussidhs

0  Iri depth grasp of highly complex claim practices and legal precedents
0  Is considered a leader/expert/manager within the department

0  Comprehensive knowledge base and highly developed skills for
situations that are highly complex

Bank Teller

citizens Bonk

June 2011tDccember 2013

0  Lead in training and support for other co-workers
0  Provided excellent customer service to customers by creating a friendly

rapport with clients

0  Processed teller transactions for customers, including servicing client
accounts, managing safely deposit box payments, cashing checks,
balancing cash drawers, handling night deposits, and correcting
discrepancies

0  Administered opening and closing of personal and business accounts
0  Exceeded sales goals


